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ALJ MORRIS: Let's go on the
record. Today's date is Tuesday, June
21st, 2011. We're here for Docket
31630, which is the application of
Par ker Fi berNet, LLC, for approval of a
certificate of public conveni ence and
necessity to provide tel ecomunication
service in the state of Al abana.

This application was filed on
May 16th, 2011. An original notice was
served on May 19th, 2011, setting a
hearing date of June 14th, 2011.
Subsequent notice was served on My
20t h, 2011, setting a hearing date for
today. And there has been no
I ntervention in this docket.

We are also here for Docket
31631, which is the application of
Appal achi an Vall ey Fi ber Network, LLC.
This application was |likewise filed --
|'"'msorry. The applicant is
Appal achi an Val |l ey Fi ber Network, LLC

They' re seeki ng approval of a

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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1 certificate of public conveni ence and
2 necessity to provide tel ecomunication
3 services in the state of Al abama. The
4 application of Parker FiberNet reads

5 the same. And there has been

6 I ntervention -- or no intervention in
7 either of these matters.

8 The application for Appal achi an
9 Val | ey Fi ber Network was identified on
10 May 16th, 2011. And notice of today's
11 heari ng was served on May 20th of 2011.
12 Wth this, we will begin by

13 t aki ng appearances, first on behalf of
14 bot h applicants, Parker Fi berNet, LLC,
15 and Appal achi an Val | ey Fi ber NetworKk,
16 LLC.

17 MR. McLEMORE: Good norning, Your
18 Honor. | am Janes H MlLenore, the

19 attorney for both Appal achian Vall ey
20 Fi ber Network and Parker Fi berNet. |
21 practice here in Montgonery wth Capell
22 and Howard at 150 South Perry Street.
23 Qur tel ephone nunber is area code 334,

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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241-8000. And wth ne today, a
representative for both conpanies, is
Its principal, M. David Parker. And
"Il have himintroduce hinself for the
record.
MR. PARKER: My nane is David
Par ker. Qur business address is 1005
South Commerce Street in Sumerville,
Ceorgia, like sumertine, Summerville
Georgia, 30747. And |I'mthe nmanager of
bot h conpani es.
ALJ MORRIS: And for the staff?
MR. COOK: Bill Cook,
Tel ecommuni cati ons Division, Conmm ssion
staff.
M5. CONWAY: Janet Conway.
ALJ MORRI'S: Thank you.
And is there anyone el se that
needs to enter an appearance?
Let the record reflect that no
one el se has cone forward.
Just as a prelimnary matter, |

want to note for the record that we are

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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t aki ng both of these applications
t oget her because of the relationship of
t he conpani es under the sane owner and
t he consideration of the parties and
the staff that this would best be
served by hearing these two together.
And with that, we will proceed.

Are there any other prelimnary matters
we need to address before we get
started?

MR. MLEMORE: No, sir.

ALJ MORRIS: Ckay. Wth that,

M. Parker, if you wll stand and raise
your right hand, I'Il swear you in and
we'll get started.

DAVI D MATTHEW PARKER
The witness, having first been sworn
to speak the truth, the whole truth and
not hing but the truth, testified as foll ows.
ALJ MORRIS: kay. Be seated.
M. MLenore.
MR. McLEMORE: Yes, sir.

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR MLEMORE:

Q
A

State your nanme for the record, please.
Davi d Matt hew Par ker .

And, M. Parker, you're here on behalf of
Appal achi an Vall ey Fi ber Network and al so
on behal f Parker FiberNet; is that
correct?

That is correct.

What is your position wth respect to the
two conpani es?

|'' mthe manager of both.

Ckay. Were is your business |ocated?
W're |located in Summerville, Georgia, at
1005 South Commerce Street. And the zip
s 30747.

Ckay. Alittle different than what |
normally do, 1'd like to kind of get into
t he back story a bit about how these two
applications cane to be filed and what
you're proceeding to do. So first I'l
ask you about your existing conpany,

Parker FiberNet. Tell ne what that

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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conpany does and how long it's been in
busi ness.

Thank you. Parker Fi berNet was began by
nyself in approxinmately 1998. W were a
smal | conpany that was doi ng horizont al
cabling and we would build private

net wor ks for existing businesses.

At that tinme, we were independently
securing public and private right-of-way
and access to various infrastructure to
connect facilities together. For
exanpl e, a | arge manufacturing conpany
m ght have an office just down the street
fromtheir manufacturing facility; and we
woul d build network between those two
facilities.

Being a little bit of a self-
procl ai ned geek, | was on the Internet a
| ot readi ng about the Tel ecom Act of '96
and saw that as an opportunity to gain
access to the public rights-of-ways,
recogni zing that at that tine that |

woul d have to secure prinmarily pole

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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Q

attachnments from Georgi a Power, Southern
Conpany, and sone other -- various
utility owmers. It becane clear that we
needed to gain Public Service authority.
That's how you nmade yourself available to
the rights-of-ways.

So | did research and found out that
the |l argest pole owner in the state of
Georgi a was Georgi a Power, Southern
Conpany. Their attorneys was Trout man
and Sanders based out of Atlanta. | felt
| i ke that | probably couldn't fight those
bi g guys, so | got the sane attorney firm
that they did, and I went and seeked
approval .

Sought ?

Sought, yeah. Well, seeked in past

t ense, sought.

He's an engineer and |'mthe | awer.
That's right. | made 800 on the nmath
part of the SAT. | nade 440 on the
verbal. That's why it's seeked.
Georgia Tech, right?

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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1 A. Ceorgia Tech. | attended Georgia Tech as
2 an el ectrical engineer. So, anyway, we
3 sought approval for that. And it becane
4 apparent we needed an ot her conmon
5 carrier certificate, a CLEC certificate,
6 sone various FCC certificates, and those
7 types of things.

8 So we were successful in gaining

9 those; and then we began building fiber
10 networ ks in secondary narkets, secondary
11 tier markets |i ke Rone, Georgia; Athens,
12 Georgia. We then -- we purchased and

13 bought IRUs for fiber fromAtlanta to

14 Chat t anooga.

15 COURT REPORTER: Purchased and

16 built our -- what kind of use?

17 THE W TNESS: | RUs, indefeasible
18 rights of use, |RU.

19 Q Slowdown a little bit.

20 A. | know. | apologize. | get wound up.
21 | apol ogi ze to the court reporter.

22 So we -- we then began -- our conpany
23 expanded and grew, and so that kind of

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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brought us to the present. W -- we

serve commercial custoners, no

residential. A typical set of custoners

say in Rone, Georgia, to nane one

| ocati on, would be |ike Shorter College,

Berry Col |l ege, Floyd Hospital, Rednond

Hospital, Harbin Cinic. So we're a

| arge commerci al provider. W provide

I nternet, switched voice through other

provi ders, and ethernet type connectivity

servi ces between those | arger providers.
At that tinme, the stinulus program --

Wait a mnute. Before you get to that,

| et nme ask you this question.

Sur e.

How | ong has Parker Fi berNet been in

busi ness?

Si nce 1999.

And you're the manager of the conpany?

' mthe manager.

Are you the owner?

"' mthe owner.

How nmany enpl oyees do you have?

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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A.  We have approximately 35 enpl oyees.

Q Okay. And you're all located in
Sumerville, CGeorgia?

A. Summerville. And that kind of leads into
anot her point | should have nade. W do
everyt hing i n-house. W have our own
engi neering firm W have our own
construction. W do and seek our own
permts with the DOI, with Georgia Power,
Bel | Sout h, AT&T. W have interconnection
agr eenment s.

We have our own directional boring
machi nes. W have our own construction
equi pnent. So we provide -- we have
bucket trucks, splicing vans. So we
provi sion, design, install. And we're
provi sion CLEC, which neans that we have
our own infrastructure in place.

I n the begi nning, you know, we
started out kind of using a UNE platform
that was provided to us fromBell; but as
t hey have sort of taken those options

away, our busi ness nodel has shifted that

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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we only provide directly connected fiber
customers to our own network.

You -- presently, you only have

t el ecomuni cations authority in Georgia;
Is that correct?

That's correct.

Ckay. Let nme ask you this. Wat -- what
IS your interest wwth respect to these
two applications for these two applicants
to do business in Al abam?

Wll, we -- as | started to say --

When you say we, you nean Parker?

Par ker. Parker FiberNet and ot her Parker
conpani es. W have sone ot her conpanies
that do ancillary things. Parker Systens
I's the construction arm Parker Fi ber Net
Is the CLEC authority in CGeorgia, for
exanpl e.

And so we sought a BTOP grant under
the stinmulus program and we were
successful in securing one. And that
grant -- we, in our business or in the

plan of the grant, made application to go

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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into Al abama to provide the mddle mle
i nfrastructure fiber connectivity to an
under served portion of Al abama, kind

of -- | get kind of turned around -- east
of --

Anni st on?

Anni st on.

Ri ght .

Ri ght .

So up in Northeast Al abama with a
traditionally underserved area with
respect to tel ephone services?

That's right.

There was a stinulus package avail abl e
that you applied for, received. And
that's -- that's the funding that you' ve
acquired to be able to seek to do
business in the state of Al abama?
That's right.

Ri ght ?

That's right. As -- as we cane, we

wor ked cl osely wth sonme of the regional

devel opnent stuff. They were working on

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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their auto alley corridor concept to
provide just-in-tinme manufacturing wth
smal | busi nesses, 60 to 80 people, to
provide to the auto industry. | know
Al abama was real successful in getting
sone of the larger car nmakers to cone
her e.

Well, there has to be ancillary
support, you know, |ike brake assenbly
manuf acturers and those ki nd of
providers. The auto alley concept
br ought us down, so we kind of mrrored
that in our strategy under the grant to
provide the mddle mle connectivity to
support those kind of activities in that
region. Al abama becane cl ear that they
were | acking the connectivity, and it --
the proximty of Northwest Georgia and
Nort heast Al abama just nmade it -- nade
the two projects mrror together nicely.

And so while | guess the folks in
Al abama don't want to be associated with

Georgia and the folks in Georgia don't

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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want to be associated with Al abama, those
two regions are very simlar in their --
in their tel ecomunication and cul tures.
So it was just a natural extension of
where our network was going to include

t hat underserved area.

Because we had the connectivity that
went Atlanta to Chattanooga and because
we followed the railroad track in that
region, it cane very close to the edge of
the state, the state |ines.

Wth your application by Appal achi an
Val | ey Fi ber Network, you intend to seek
the authority to provide the

i nfrastructure for the fiberoptic cable
and the other construction services; is
that correct?

That's correct.

You really don't intend by Appal achi an
Vall ey to provide end user services; is
that right?

Right. The stipul ati ons under the

grant -- and you guys can probably

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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appreci ate nore than nost the
conplications and the rul es associ at ed
wth a federal grant and the -- the
gui del i nes and stringent boundaries that
they place us in. The grant project had
to be a mddle mle only type fi ber
project serving the infrastructure of
under served communities and | arge anchor
i nstitutions.

And so it was a nice narriage to
al |l ow Parker FiberNet to cone in to be
the interface to the custoner and
Appal achi an Vall ey, under the grant, to
provide the mddle mle fiber
connectivity in those regions.
Ckay. And that was what | was going to
ask. Parker FiberNet wll provide the
t el ecommuni cati ons services to the end
users --
Ri ght .
-- simlar to the work that you're doing
in Georgia now?
That's right. That's right. And it was

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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an effort not to use grant or stinulus
funds to mrror or duplicate
iinfrastructure that existed in Parker
Fi berNet, that all those funds could then
be funneled directly to extending the
network into the underserved areas.

How many custoners do you antici pate
havi ng i n Al abama?

Probably nore than none and | ess than a
hundr ed.

Al right. Well, with that background,
| et me ask you a few questions about

Par ker Fi berNet. Again, the primry
busi ness address for that?

s 1005 South Commerce Street.

s that true for Appal achian Valley as
wel | ?

Yes, sir.

And what's the tel ephone nunber for the
conpany?

It's 800- 8- PARKER or 1-800-872-7537.

| s that nunber true for Appal achi an

Vall ey as wel | ?

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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Yes, sir.
"Il ask you have you read and are you
famliar with both of the applications in

this proceedi ng?

Are you famliar with both of the
proposed tariffs in this proceedi ng?
Yes, sir.

Are they true and correct?

Yes, sir.

Your conpany is presently registered to
do business in the state of Al abamms,
correct?

No. In the state of Georgia.

Well, | nean, you don't have the

t el econmuni cations authority fromthe
Public Service Comm ssion yet, but you
have registered with the Secretary of
State's Ofice.

Right. Yes, sir. Yes, sir. |

apol ogi ze.

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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Q WII the conpany operate -- either

A

conpany operate under any fictitious
names i n Al abama?

No, sir.

And Parker FiberNet is authorized by the
Public Utilities Conm ssion of the State
of CGeorgia to do business there, but
you're not authorized with

t el econmuni cations authority anywhere
else. |s that correct?

That is correct.

And Appal achian Valley Fi ber Net, does it
not have any authority from Georgia for
t el ecommuni cati on services?

W're in the process.

Ckay. You're seeking that application
now?

| don't exactly know the status, but | --
we're in the process.

Ckay. Has Parker Fi berNet ever applied
for tel econmmuni cations authority in any
ot her jurisdiction?

No, sir.

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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Q Has the conpany ever been cited for any

formal conplaints by the Public Service
Comm ssi on of Ceorgi a?

No, sir.

Has the conpany or any of the principals

or officers of the conpany ever been

indicted for a crine or -- or other
fel ony?
No, sir.

Are you presently, either conpany, under
i nvestigation for any regul atory

br eaches?

No, sir.

Does either conpany plan to operate any
physical facilities in the state of

Al abama ot her than the construction of
the fiberoptic cable?

No, sir.

Does the conpany plan to have any

enpl oyees in the state of Al abama?

O her than during the construction, no,
sir.

Ckay. Wio wi |l Parker FiberNet use for

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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Its underlying carrier?

For swi tched voice?

Yeah.

We have interconnection agreenents with
AT&T. It's now EarthLink. It used to be
Del tacom A conpany call ed Monentum out
of Birmngham And | believe that would
be all for sw tched voice.

That's who you presently use?

Yes, sir.

Do you know whi ch of those you'll be
using in Al abama?

It would probably be a m xture of the

t hr ee.

But you don't have any agreenents in
place wwth that yet?

No. The AT&T agreenent, for exanple,
when we secured it, was for seven
states. So we went ahead -- even though
we didn't have authority, we nade
application and have AT&T agreenents for
all of their seven operating states.

Monentum there's a voice over |P.

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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Per haps you guys are nore |earned than I,
but under -- we felt |ike that under our
current agreenent, that voice over [P,
bei ng voi ce- packaged switch, was not
regul ated; that we didn't need an

I ndi vi dual application for each state.
And with respect to both conpanies -- |
guess, really, we're tal ki ng about Parker
Fi berNet. Wth respect to sending
custoner bills for tel ephone services, do
you plan to send bills on a nonthly

basi s?

Yes, sir.

And will those bills be paper bills?

Yes, sir.

WIIl the tel ephone nunber of the conpany
be on the bill?

Yes, sir.

And that tel ephone nunber wll be what?
1- 800- 8- PARKER or 800-872-7537.

| f a custoner has a problemor needs to
contact the conpany to -- about a

grievance or any other issue, is that the

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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t el ephone nunber that they may call ?
Yes, sir.

Ckay. And what happens when they call
during your normal business hours?

They wll get the secretary. W don't
believe in them nmachi nes where you have
to push one or two to get sonebody. A
person answers the phone, and then
they'lIl be directed to -- we have an

I n- house engineer that sits in
Summerville, and he fields all the calls
initially.

Ckay. VWhat are your nornmal business
hour s?

Ei ght to five Monday through Friday.

And if a customer were to call after
busi ness hours, what's your protocol for
handl i ng those cal | s?

The call would be handl ed by the network
operations center, and they would direct
the call to the various engi neer person
within the hour. Renenbering that our

custoners are | arge business custoners,

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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t he next business day for a response is

| nadequate. So we return all of our

calls. Typically, they're just swtched

directly to that end user's cell phone

because it would be on outage or sone

conplaint. And we require either

engi neering to do a routing change or

| ook into the -- the -- you know, we

woul d | ook at our equi pnent to see how it

interfaces, if we're up and up agai nst

the custonmer. |If we had to, we would

begin the troubl eshooting at that tine.
That usual ly happens within 15

m nut es, but our procedure is within the

hour .

Ckay. Do your conpanies plan to do any

marketing in the state of Al abama?

No.

Ckay. Wien you do marketing in CGeorgia,

for exanple, do you use a third party or

do you do it yourself?

W do it ourself. W don't do any

third-party marketing.

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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You don't. So you don't have any intent
to use a third party in Al abama for

mar keting either, do you?

No, sir.

Ckay. And with respect to your bill that
s sent to the custoner that has the

t el ephone nunber that you nentioned, it

has the conpany's nane on the bill as
well, right?
Yes, sir.

Does Par ker Fi berNet have a website?
Yes, sir.

Ckay. Does Appal achian Val l ey have a
websi te?

Yes, sir.

Is it the sane or different?

They |ink each other, but they're

di fferent.

Ckay. |Is there a tel ephone nunber of
your conpany on those websites?

Yes, sir.

And what nunber would that be, the sane?

1- 800- 8- PARKER.

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397



PARKER FIBERNET/APPALACHIAN VALLEY (Docket #31630/#31631)

27

© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N N NN R R R R R R R R R R
W N P O © 0O N O O M W N PP O

Q

o > O P

o > O P

>

Where wi Il the conpani es books and
records be naintai ned?

In Summerville, Georgia.

WIIl you nmaintain accurate, up-to-date

tariffs on file with the Comm ssi on?

Yes, sir.

Ckay. Are you famliar with the rules

and regul ati ons of the Al abama Public

Servi ce Conm ssi on?
Yes, sir.
WIIl you abide by then?

Yes, sSir.

Are you famliar with the [ aws, rules,

and regqgul ati ons of the Federal
Commruni cati ons Conmi ssi on?
Yes, sir.

WIIl you abide by thenf

Yes, sSir.

Are you famliar with federal and state

sl amm ng and cranm ng | aws?
Yes, sir.
WIIl you abide by then?

Absol ut el y.
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Q

o > O P

Have you ever had any formal conplaints
about slamm ng or cramm ng or any

t el ecommuni cati ons breach?

No, sir.

In the event you were accused of any

sl amm ng or cramm ng viol ations, would
the conpany i mmedi ately stop those
actions and engage in the appropriate
di sci pline of the relevant enpl oyees?
Yes, sir.

Do you understand that your conpanies
must file and have approved by the
Comm ssi on an interconnection agreenent
W th respect to providing services in
Al abama?

Yes, sir.

And will you do that?

Absol ut el y.

Are your conpani es aware that you nust

file annually a supervision and

| nspection report and pay the appropriate

f ees associated with that?

Yes, sSir.
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Q WII your conpanies do that?

A. Absol utely.

Q Are you aware that the conpany -- both
conpanies nust file annually a financi al
report with the Public Service
Conmm ssi on?

A.  Yes, sir.

And wi Il your conpanies conply with that
requi renent ?

A.  Yes, sir.

MR. MLEMORE: That's all.
AL MORRI'S: Let's start with
M. Cook.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR COCK:

Q M. Parker, ny conplinents to your
attorney.

A. Thank you.

He' s asked about all ny questions. Does
your conpany plan to use a d/b/a? |
noticed that you got Parker filed as an
LLC, hereafter PFN.

A. The PFN is just for conveni ence of the
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Commi ssion. Parker FiberNet. So we
don't -- we don't have a d/b/a that would
not be intuitively apparent. W felt
| i ke PFN i s Parker FiberNet, just an
acronym so that's -- but there's no
d/b/a like John's Tel ephone Conpany or
anything |ike that.

That was just for the conveni ence of
or the docunents. | apologize if we

shoul dn't have done it that way.

No. That's okay. It was just kind of
conf usi ng.
Yes, sir.

The financial information that you fil ed,
is that the latest and current?

Yes, sir.

Who w il be the contact person for

Al abama tariff-specific questions?
Kristy Parker.

And what is her title?

She's the office manager.

She any kin to you?

She m ght be. She's ny wwfe. W're a
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smal | conpany, as | stated. She went to
Georgia, too, which creates sone
conflict.

Ch, that gets kind of interesting at the
end of the year, don't it?

For the last nine years, it's been real

i nteresting except for one year.

Has your conpany ever been filed or
presently in any bankruptcy proceedi ngs?
No, sir.

There will not be a marketing or sales
staff located in Al abama?

No, sir.

Your underlying carrier, you said, is
goi ng to be AT&T, EarthLink, which used
to be Deltacom Mnentum which is the
VG P?

That's correct.

Ckay.
And -- and | don't know. | apologize for
ny ignorance. | don't know if EarthLink

Is going to be the survivor or if

Deltacomis going to be the survivor, but
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| know they've nerged. And | think -- |
noticed the other day that the EarthLink
| ogo was now on the bill.

M5. CONWAY: | think it's
Ear t hLi nk.

THE WTNESS: Yes, ma'am |
apol ogi ze.

And then our -- we aggregate our |nternet
product ourselves. So the underlying
carrier | guess would be us because we
BGP pier with our tier one.

COURT REPORTER  BGP what ?

THE W TNESS: BGP, border gat eway
protocol, so it's BGP pier. |I'msorry.
| sort of rattle off.

W take -- we take multiple Internet
providers, |ike AT&T or the | arger
conpani es, UNET, cable and wireless; and
we aggregate that product ourselves. W
have a col ocation at 56 Marietta, a

tel ecom hotel for the Southeast. So we
have a presence there. So we don't have

an underlying carrier for our Internet.
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We do it ourselves.

Ckay. The locations you plan to serve in
Al abama is basically going to be

Nor t heast ?

That's correct.

Ckay.

Basically fromBreman in Georgia to
Anni st on.

Are you aware that the Comm ssion nust be
notified if there are any changes in key
contact personnel --

Yes, sir.

-- conpany ownership via nerger,

transfers or acquisitions?

Yes, sir?

And -- and/or mailing or phone address?
Yes, sir.

Your conpany nane wl |l appear on the
bill?

Yes, sir.

And the bill wll be paper?
Yes, sir.

Who wi || provide operator service or
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directory assi stance?
The underlying carrier of the switch --
of the swtch provider. So if we -- if

the circuit is derived from AT&T, AT&T

provides that service. |If the circuit is
derived from EarthLi nk, they wll provide
that service. |If the systemis derived

by Monmentum then | think they sub it

out. But it's provided by the underlying
carrier.

Do you agree to provide by all the rules

and regul ati ons of this comm ssion?

Absol ut el y.
MR COOK: | turn it over to
Ms. Conway.

ALJ MORRI'S: M. Conway.
M5. CONWAY: Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. CONVWAY:

Q M. Parker, is your conpany currently

provi di ng any type of teleconmunication
services in Al abam?

No, na' am
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Q

You nentioned earlier that there was a
separate website for Appal achian Valley?
Yes, sir.

Do you happen to know what that is? Can
you provide that post-hearing?

Yes, ma'am | think it's AVFN com but
"1l have to check. That website is
primarily placed currently for the
conveni ence of the grant, for the

sel ection of vendors and equi pnent and
contractors.

Ckay. W11 Appal achian Valley actually
be | easing fiber to Parker FiberNet? |Is
that the way it wll work?

Yes. Yes, nma' am

Ckay. So in all instances, the end user
woul d be Par ker FiberNet from Appal achi an
Val | ey?

Par ker Fi ber Net woul d be an end user.
Wiile it's not a requirenent of the
federal stinmulus grant, we intend to
provi de an open architecture. So if a

W rel ess provider was known to AVFN or
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Parker, we would be wlling to sell to
any end user conpany; AVFN woul d.

Ckay. So you would be actually reselling
to another carrier?

On a whol esal e basis, yes, ma'am

Ckay.

It -- there's not an exclusive
arrangenent from AVFN to Parker. W
wanted to provide an open architecture
format to allow -- we're not into

W rel ess space; but if a wirel ess conpany
approached us as Parker Fi berNet, because
we probably would be known to those guys
because we provide that to the Verizons
and AT&Ts of the world in these rural
markets that we're in, we would provide
that information to AVFN if a request was
made in Al abama. So Al abama could --
AVFN coul d have whol esal e custoners as
end users as well as Parker FiberNet.
Ckay. So just to clarify, the -- it
woul d be whol esal e resal e to other

carriers only?
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That's right. That's right.

Ckay.
And -- and | don't -- | don't want to
limt ourselves. | f AVFN made a busi ness

case to, say, a school systemor a
hospital, we would determ ne what was
best for the custoner. And in that case,
AVFN m ght directly take care of the
custoner. Most likely, it would be

Par ker FiberNet; but | want to be very
transparent.

So it's possible it could be -- other end
users could --

But it would be -- it would be in

sophi sticated industrial or institutional
type venues, right.

Ckay.

| think it's highly unlikely, but I just
want to be transparent.

Ckay. And are you famliar wth tariff
filing procedures and notification of
pronoti ons?

Yes, m'am
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M5. CONWAY: Judge Morris, the
actual tariff for Appal achian Vall ey
was not filed until yesterday.

ALJ MORRI'S: Ckay.

M5. CONVAY: So | have not had tine
to thoroughly reviewit.

ALJ MORRI'S: Ckay.

M5. CONVAY: So |I'd like to take a
few days to be able to thoroughly
reviewit. And | have already seen a
couple of issues in it that we'll need
to di scuss and nmaybe nake sone changes.

THE W TNESS:  Sure.

M5. CONWAY: But | will get back
wth you, Jimy, on that --

MR. MLEMORE: Ckay.

M. CONVAY: -- as soon as |'ve got
It conpl et ed.
MR. McLEMORE: | apol ogi ze for

that. W thought maybe we woul d be
excused fromfiling that, and we
weren't, so | appreciate that, so we

got it to you.
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1 M5. CONWAY: That's okay. That's
2 okay. So post-hearing, | wll just
3 need the website address al so of
4 Appal achian Valley. That's all | have.
5 MR. McLEMORE:  Ckay.
6 ALJ MORRIS: Ckay. |'ve just got a
7 couple of things. | notice in your
8 financial -- financial information with
9 the PFN application, there is sonme sort
10 of a bal ance sheet for DKSL. Can you
11 tell me what that is?
12 THE WTNESS: That's a hol di ng
13 conpany for tax that owns all the
14 conpani es that | have.
15 ALJ MORRI S: (Ckay.
16 THE WTNESS: It stands for David,
17 Kristy, Seth and Luke. Those are ny
18 children's nanes. So |'mnot very
19 creative. Parker Systens, Parker
20 Fi ber Net .
21 ALJ MORRI'S: You |ike acronyns.
22 Ckay.
23 THE W TNESS: Yeah. M tax
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account ant suggested that, and so it's
a hol di ng conpany.

ALJ MORRIS: Ckay. And for
Appal achi an Val |l ey Fi ber Network, has
t hat even been capitalized yet?

THE WTNESS: Well, it's funded by
the BTOP stinulus grant.

ALJ MORRIS: And that's the sole
source of capital for that project?

THE WTNESS: And it's nore than
sufficient to acconplish. W received
a $28 mllion grant.

ALJ MORRI'S: Ckay. And, you know,
there's no plan to put any of your own
personal capital into that?

THE WTNESS: W nmatched the grant
with $5 mllion.

ALJ MORRI'S: You natched the grant.

THE WTNESS: O in-kind.

AL MORRIS: Al right. And | wll
need actually -- for both Parker
Fi ber Net and Appal achi an Val | ey Fi ber

Network, | wll need the articles of
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organi zation. Wat |'ve got is the
operating agreenents were filed, but
|"m going to need the articles of

or gani zati on post-heari ng.

MR. McLEMORE: Yes, sir.

ALJ MORRIS: And as Ms. Conway has
al ready stated, she needs the website
for Appal achian Valley and she's going
to need sone tine to review the
tariff. And we'll get those issues
resol ved before we take this to the
Comm ssion for final approval.

M. MlLenore, do you have
anything else you'd |like to add?

MR. McLEMORE: No, sir.

ALJ MORRIS: Okay. Wth that, we
wi Il take this under advisenent. And
this hearing is concl uded.

(Proceedi ngs concl uded at
11:16 a. m)
* * * END OF PROCEEDI NGS * * *
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE
STATE OF ALABANA
ELMORE COUNTY
|, Dee Coker, Registered Professional

Reporter and Comm ssioner for the State of
Al abama at Large, hereby certify that on
Tuesday, June 21, 2011, | reported the
TESTI MONY AND PROCEEDI NGS in the matter of the
foregoi ng cause, and that pages 3 through 41
contain a true and accurate transcription of
sai d proceedi ngs.

| further certify that | am neither
kin nor of counsel to the parties to said
cause, nor in any nmanner interested in the

results thereof.

| s/ Dee Coker

DEE COKER, CCR, RPR
Comm ssi oner for the
State of Al abama at Large
CCR 85, Expires 9/30/2011

COW SSI ON EXPI RES: 1/ 20/ 2013
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Floyd (1)
folks (2)
followed (1)
follows (1)
foregoing (1)
formal (2)
format (1)
forward (1)
found (1)
Friday (1)
funded (1)
funding (1)
funds (2)
funneled (1)
further (1)

<G>

gain (2)
gaining (1)
gateway (1)
geek (1)
Georgia (28)
getting (1)
go (2
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going (8)
Good (1)
grant (15)
grew (1)
grievance (1)
guess (3)
guidelines (1)
guys (4)

<H>

hand (1)
handled (1)
handling (1)
happen (1)
happens (2)
Harbin (1)
Hearing (9)
highly (1)
holding (2)
Honor (1)
Honorable (1)
horizontal (1)
Hospital (3)
hotel (1)
hour (2)
hours (3)
house (2)
HOWARD (2)
hundred (1)

<|>

identified (1)
ignorance (1)
(1)
iinfrastructure (1)
immediately (1)
inadequate (1)
include (1)
indefeasible (1)
independently (1)
INDEX (1)
indicted (1)
individual (1)
industrial (1)
industry (1)
information (3)
infrastructure (5)
initially (1)
inspection (1)

install (1)
instances (1)
institutional (1)
institutions (1)
intend (3)
intent (1)
interconnection
(3)

interest (1)
interested (1)
interesting (2)
interface (1)
interfaces (1)
Internet (5)
intervention (3)
introduce (1)
intuitively (1)
investigation (1)
P (2)

IRU (1)

IRUs (2)
issue (1)
issues (2)

its (2)

<J>

James (2)
Janet (2)
Jimmy (1)
John's (1)
Judge (3)
June (4)
jurisdiction (1)

<K>

key (1)
kin (2)
kind (13)
know (12)
known (2)
Kristy (2)

<L>
lacking (1)
Large (7)
larger (3)
largest (1)
latest (1)
LAW (4)

laws (2)
lawyer (1)
leads (1)
learned (1)
leasing (1)
likewise (1)
limit (1)
lines (1)
link (1)
little (3)
LLC (9)
located (4)
location (1)
locations (1)
logo (1)
long (2)
look (2)
lot (1)
Luke (1)

<M>

ma'am (6)
machines (2)
mailing (1)
maintain (1)
maintained (1)
makers (1)
manager (5)
manner (1)
manufacturers
1)
manufacturing
3

Marietta (1)
marketing (5)
markets (3)
marriage (1)
matched (2)
math (1)
MATTER (3)
matters (2)
MATTHEW (3)
McLemore (15)
mean (2)
means (1)
mentioned (2)
merged (1)
merger (1)
middle (4)

mile (4)
million (2)
minute (1)
minutes (1)
mirror (2)
mirrored (1)
mixture (1)
model (1)
Momentum (4)
Monday (1)
Montgomery (4)
monthly (1)
morning (1)
Morris (21)
multiple (1)

<N >

name (5)
names (2)
natural (1)
necessity (2)
need (8)
needed (2)
needs (3)
neither (1)
Net (1)
NETWORK (15)
networks (2)
nice (1)
nicely (1)
nine (1)
normal (2)
normally (1)
North (2)
Northeast (3)
Northwest (1)
note (1)
notice (4)
noticed (2)
notification (1)
notified (1)
number (9)

<0O>
office (3)
officers (1)
Ooh (1)
Okay (42)
open (2)
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operate (3)
operating (2)
operations (1)
operator (1)
opportunity (1)
options (1)
organization (2)
original (1)
ourself (1)
outage (1)
owner (4)
owners (1)
ownership (1)
owns (1)

<P>
package (1)
packaged (1)
pages (1)
paper (2)
PARKER (53)
part (1)
parties (2)
party (3)
pay (1)
people (1)
permits (1)
Perry (2)
person (3)
personal (1)
personnel (1)
PFN (4)
phone (3)
physical (1)
pier (2)
place (3)
placed (1)
plan (8)
platform (1)
please (1)
point (1)
pole (2)
portion (1)
position (1)
possible (1)
post (3)
Power (3)
practice (1)
preliminary (2)

presence (1)
present (1)
presently (5)
primarily (2)
primary (1)
principal (1)
principals (1)
private (2)
probably (5)
problem (1)
procedure (1)
procedures (1)
proceed (1)
proceeding (3)
PROCEEDINGS
(6)

process (2)
proclaimed (1)
product (2)

Professional (2)

program (2)
project (3)
projects (1)
promotions (1)
proposed (1)
protocol (2)
provide (21)
provided (2)
provider (3)
providers (4)
provides (1)
providing (2)
provision (2)
proximity (1)
PUBLIC (14)
purchased (2)
push (1)

put (1)

<Q>
guestion (1)
guestions (3)

<R>
railroad (1)
raise (1)
rattle (1)
read (1)
reading (1)

reads (1)

real (2)

really (2)
received (2)
recognizing (1)
record (5)
records (1)
Redmond (1)
reflect (1)
region (2)
regional (1)
regions (2)
Registered (4)
regulated (1)
regulations (3)
regulatory (1)
relationship (1)
relevant (1)
Remembering (1)
report (2)
reported (2)
Reporter (5)
REPORTER'S (1)
representative (1)
request (1)
require (1)
requirement (2)
resale (1)
research (1)
reselling (1)
residential (1)
resolved (1)
respect (7)
response (1)
results (1)
return (1)
review (3)
right (22)
rights (3)
Rome (2)
Room (1)
routing (1)
RPR (1)

RSA (2)

rules (4)

rural (1)

<S>
sales (1)

Sanders (1)
SAT (1)
saw (1)
school (1)
Scott (1)
seated (1)
secondary (2)
Secretary (2)
secure (1)
secured (1)
securing (2)
see (1)
seek (3)
seeked (3)
seeking (2)
seen (1)
selection (1)
self (1)

sell (1)
send (1)
sending (1)
sent (1)
separate (1)
serve (2)
served (4)
SERVICE (11)
services (10)
serving (1)
set (1)

Seth (1)
setting (2)
seven (2)
sheet (1)
shifted (1)
Shorter (1)
similar (2)
sir (51)

sits (1)
slamming (3)
Slow (1)
small (3)
sole (1)
somebody (1)
soon (1)
sophisticated (1)
sorry (2)
sort (3)
Sought (5)
source (1)
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South (5)
Southeast (1)
Southern (2)
space (1)
speak (1)
specific (1)
splicing (1)
staff (4)

stand (1)
stands (1)
start (1)
started (4)
STATE (20)
stated (2)
states (2)
State's (1)
status (1)
stimulus (6)
stipulations (1)
stop (1)

story (1)
strategy (1)
Street (8)
stringent (1)
stuff (1)

sub (1)
Subsequent (1)
successful (3)
sufficient (1)
suggested (1)
Suite (1)
summertime (1)
Summerville (7)
supervision (1)
support (2)
Sure (2)
survivor (2)
swear (1)
switch (3)
switched (4)
sworn (1)
system (2)
Systems (2)

<T>

take (6)

taken (1)
talking (1)
tariff (4)

tariffs  (2)

tax (2)

Tech (3)
Telecom (2)
telecommunicatio
n (5)

Telecommunicatio

ns (8)
telephone (10)
Tell (2)

tense (1)
testified (1)
TESTIMONY (2)
Thank (4)
thereof (1)
things (3)
think (5)

third (3)
thoroughly (2)
thought (1)
three (1)

tier (2)

time (7)

title (1)

today (2)
Today's (2)
track (1)
traditionally (1)
transcription (1)
transfers (1)
transparent (2)
troubleshooting
(1)

Troutman (1)
trucks (1)
true (5)

truth (3)

Ts (1)
Tuesday (3)
turn (1)
turned (1)
two (9)

type (4)
types (1)
typical (1)
Typically (1)

<U>
underlying (6)

underserved (5)
understand (1)
UNE (1)
UNET (1)
Union (4)
use (8)

user (4)
users (3)
user's (1)
usually (1)
Utilities (1)
Utility  (3)

<V >
VALLEY (22)
vans (1)
various (4)
vendors (1)
venues (1)
verbal (1)
Verizons (1)
violations (1)
voice (6)
VOIP (1)

<W >

Wait (1)
want (6)
wanted (1)
way (3)
ways (2)
website (6)
websites (1)
Well (10)
went (4)
We're (11)
wholesale (3)
wife (1)
William (1)
willing (1)
wireless (4)
witness (12)
work (2)
worked (1)
working (1)
world (1)
wound (1)

<Y >

yeah (3)
year (2)
years (1)
yesterday (1)

<Z>
zip (1)
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 1                 STATE OF ALABAMA



 2            PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION



 3           ADMINISTRATIVE LAW DIVISION



 4   



 5   

     

 6   IN THE MATTER OF:  

     

 7   PARKER FIBERNET, LLC    DOCKET NO.: 31630

     

 8   APPALACHIAN VALLEY      DOCKET NO.: 31631 

     FIBER NETWORK, LLC

 9   

     

10

     

11              * * * * * * * * * * *



12           TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS before the 



13   Honorable Scott Morris, Administrative Law 



14   Judge, Carl L. Evans Chief Administrative Law 



15   Judge Hearing Complex, RSA Union Building, 100 



16   North Union Street, Room 900, Montgomery, 



17   Alabama, on Tuesday, June 21, 2011, commencing 



18   at approximately 10:43 a.m.; and reported by 



19   Dee Coker, Registered Professional Reporter 



20   and Commissioner for the State of Alabama at 



21   Large.         



22              * * * * * * * * * * *
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 1              ALJ MORRIS:  Let's go on the 



 2          record.  Today's date is Tuesday, June 



 3          21st, 2011.  We're here for Docket 



 4          31630, which is the application of 



 5          Parker FiberNet, LLC, for approval of a 



 6          certificate of public convenience and 



 7          necessity to provide telecommunication 



 8          service in the state of Alabama.  



 9                  This application was filed on 



10          May 16th, 2011.  An original notice was 



11          served on May 19th, 2011, setting a 



12          hearing date of June 14th, 2011.  



13          Subsequent notice was served on May 



14          20th, 2011, setting a hearing date for 



15          today.  And there has been no 



16          intervention in this docket.  



17                  We are also here for Docket 



18          31631, which is the application of 



19          Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, LLC.  



20          This application was likewise filed -- 



21          I'm sorry.  The applicant is 



22          Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, LLC.  



23          They're seeking approval of a 
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 1          certificate of public convenience and 



 2          necessity to provide telecommunication 



 3          services in the state of Alabama.  The 



 4          application of Parker FiberNet reads 



 5          the same.  And there has been 



 6          intervention -- or no intervention in 



 7          either of these matters.  



 8                  The application for Appalachian 



 9          Valley Fiber Network was identified on 



10          May 16th, 2011.  And notice of today's 



11          hearing was served on May 20th of 2011.



12                  With this, we will begin by 



13          taking appearances, first on behalf of 



14          both applicants, Parker FiberNet, LLC, 



15          and Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, 



16          LLC.



17              MR. McLEMORE:  Good morning, Your 



18          Honor.  I am James H. McLemore, the 



19          attorney for both Appalachian Valley 



20          Fiber Network and Parker FiberNet.  I 



21          practice here in Montgomery with Capell 



22          and Howard at 150 South Perry Street.  



23          Our telephone number is area code 334, 
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 1          241-8000.  And with me today, a 



 2          representative for both companies, is 



 3          its principal, Mr. David Parker.  And 



 4          I'll have him introduce himself for the 



 5          record.  



 6              MR. PARKER:  My name is David 



 7          Parker.  Our business address is 1005 



 8          South Commerce Street in Summerville, 



 9          Georgia, like summertime, Summerville 



10          Georgia, 30747.  And I'm the manager of 



11          both companies.



12              ALJ MORRIS:  And for the staff?



13              MR. COOK:  Bill Cook, 



14          Telecommunications Division, Commission 



15          staff.  



16              MS. CONWAY:  Janet Conway.



17              ALJ MORRIS:  Thank you.  



18                  And is there anyone else that 



19          needs to enter an appearance?  



20                  Let the record reflect that no 



21          one else has come forward.  



22                  Just as a preliminary matter, I 



23          want to note for the record that we are 
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 1          taking both of these applications 



 2          together because of the relationship of 



 3          the companies under the same owner and 



 4          the consideration of the parties and 



 5          the staff that this would best be 



 6          served by hearing these two together.  



 7                  And with that, we will proceed.  



 8          Are there any other preliminary matters 



 9          we need to address before we get 



10          started?  



11              MR. McLEMORE:  No, sir.



12              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.  With that, 



13          Mr. Parker, if you will stand and raise 



14          your right hand, I'll swear you in and 



15          we'll get started.



16               DAVID MATTHEW PARKER



17           The witness, having first been sworn 



18   to speak the truth, the whole truth and 



19   nothing but the truth, testified as follows.



20              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.  Be seated.  



21                  Mr. McLemore.



22              MR. McLEMORE:  Yes, sir.



23                         
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 1                DIRECT EXAMINATION



 2   BY MR. McLEMORE:



 3   Q.  State your name for the record, please.  



 4   A.  David Matthew Parker.  



 5   Q.  And, Mr. Parker, you're here on behalf of 



 6       Appalachian Valley Fiber Network and also 



 7       on behalf Parker FiberNet; is that 



 8       correct?



 9   A.  That is correct.



10   Q.  What is your position with respect to the 



11       two companies?



12   A.  I'm the manager of both.



13   Q.  Okay.  Where is your business located?



14   A.  We're located in Summerville, Georgia, at 



15       1005 South Commerce Street.  And the zip 



16       is 30747.



17   Q.  Okay.  A little different than what I 



18       normally do, I'd like to kind of get into 



19       the back story a bit about how these two 



20       applications came to be filed and what 



21       you're proceeding to do.  So first I'll 



22       ask you about your existing company, 



23       Parker FiberNet.  Tell me what that 
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 1       company does and how long it's been in 



 2       business.



 3   A.  Thank you.  Parker FiberNet was began by 



 4       myself in approximately 1998.  We were a 



 5       small company that was doing horizontal 



 6       cabling and we would build private 



 7       networks for existing businesses.  



 8            At that time, we were independently 



 9       securing public and private right-of-way 



10       and access to various infrastructure to 



11       connect facilities together.  For 



12       example, a large manufacturing company 



13       might have an office just down the street 



14       from their manufacturing facility; and we 



15       would build network between those two 



16       facilities.  



17            Being a little bit of a self- 



18       proclaimed geek, I was on the Internet a 



19       lot reading about the Telecom Act of '96 



20       and saw that as an opportunity to gain 



21       access to the public rights-of-ways, 



22       recognizing that at that time that I 



23       would have to secure primarily pole 
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 1       attachments from Georgia Power, Southern 



 2       Company, and some other -- various 



 3       utility owners.  It became clear that we 



 4       needed to gain Public Service authority.  



 5       That's how you made yourself available to 



 6       the rights-of-ways.  



 7            So I did research and found out that 



 8       the largest pole owner in the state of 



 9       Georgia was Georgia Power, Southern 



10       Company.  Their attorneys was Troutman 



11       and Sanders based out of Atlanta.  I felt 



12       like that I probably couldn't fight those 



13       big guys, so I got the same attorney firm 



14       that they did, and I went and seeked 



15       approval.



16   Q.  Sought?



17   A.  Sought, yeah.  Well, seeked in past 



18       tense, sought.



19   Q.  He's an engineer and I'm the lawyer.  



20   A.  That's right.  I made 800 on the math 



21       part of the SAT.  I made 440 on the 



22       verbal.  That's why it's seeked. 



23   Q.  Georgia Tech, right?   
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 1   A.  Georgia Tech.  I attended Georgia Tech as 



 2       an electrical engineer.  So, anyway, we 



 3       sought approval for that.  And it became 



 4       apparent we needed an other common 



 5       carrier certificate, a CLEC certificate, 



 6       some various FCC certificates, and those 



 7       types of things.  



 8            So we were successful in gaining 



 9       those; and then we began building fiber 



10       networks in secondary markets, secondary 



11       tier markets like Rome, Georgia; Athens, 



12       Georgia.  We then -- we purchased and 



13       bought IRUs for fiber from Atlanta to 



14       Chattanooga.



15              COURT REPORTER:  Purchased and 



16          built our -- what kind of use? 



17              THE WITNESS:  IRUs, indefeasible 



18          rights of use, IRU.  



19   Q.  Slow down a little bit.



20   A.  I know.  I apologize.  I get wound up.  



21       I apologize to the court reporter. 



22            So we -- we then began -- our company 



23       expanded and grew, and so that kind of 
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 1       brought us to the present.  We -- we 



 2       serve commercial customers, no 



 3       residential.  A typical set of customers 



 4       say in Rome, Georgia, to name one 



 5       location, would be like Shorter College, 



 6       Berry College, Floyd Hospital, Redmond 



 7       Hospital, Harbin Clinic.  So we're a 



 8       large commercial provider.  We provide 



 9       Internet, switched voice through other 



10       providers, and ethernet type connectivity 



11       services between those larger providers.  



12            At that time, the stimulus program -- 



13   Q.  Wait a minute.  Before you get to that, 



14       let me ask you this question.



15   A.  Sure.



16   Q.  How long has Parker FiberNet been in 



17       business?



18   A.  Since 1999.



19   Q.  And you're the manager of the company?



20   A.  I'm the manager.



21   Q.  Are you the owner?



22   A.  I'm the owner.



23   Q.  How many employees do you have?



�                                                                   12



 1   A.  We have approximately 35 employees.



 2   Q.  Okay.  And you're all located in 



 3       Summerville, Georgia?



 4   A.  Summerville.  And that kind of leads into 



 5       another point I should have made.  We do 



 6       everything in-house.  We have our own 



 7       engineering firm.  We have our own 



 8       construction.  We do and seek our own 



 9       permits with the DOT, with Georgia Power, 



10       BellSouth, AT&T.  We have interconnection 



11       agreements.  



12            We have our own directional boring 



13       machines.  We have our own construction 



14       equipment.  So we provide -- we have 



15       bucket trucks, splicing vans.  So we 



16       provision, design, install.  And we're 



17       provision CLEC, which means that we have 



18       our own infrastructure in place.  



19            In the beginning, you know, we 



20       started out kind of using a UNE platform 



21       that was provided to us from Bell; but as 



22       they have sort of taken those options 



23       away, our business model has shifted that 
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 1       we only provide directly connected fiber 



 2       customers to our own network.



 3   Q.  You -- presently, you only have 



 4       telecommunications authority in Georgia; 



 5       is that correct?



 6   A.  That's correct.



 7   Q.  Okay.  Let me ask you this.  What -- what 



 8       is your interest with respect to these 



 9       two applications for these two applicants 



10       to do business in Alabama?



11   A.  Well, we -- as I started to say -- 



12   Q.  When you say we, you mean Parker?



13   A.  Parker.  Parker FiberNet and other Parker 



14       companies.  We have some other companies 



15       that do ancillary things.  Parker Systems 



16       is the construction arm.  Parker FiberNet 



17       is the CLEC authority in Georgia, for 



18       example.  



19            And so we sought a BTOP grant under 



20       the stimulus program, and we were 



21       successful in securing one.  And that 



22       grant -- we, in our business or in the 



23       plan of the grant, made application to go 
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 1       into Alabama to provide the middle mile 



 2       infrastructure fiber connectivity to an 



 3       underserved portion of Alabama, kind 



 4       of -- I get kind of turned around -- east 



 5       of -- 



 6   Q.  Anniston?



 7   A.  Anniston.



 8   Q.  Right.  



 9   A.  Right.



10   Q.  So up in Northeast Alabama with a 



11       traditionally underserved area with 



12       respect to telephone services?



13   A.  That's right.



14   Q.  There was a stimulus package available 



15       that you applied for, received.  And 



16       that's -- that's the funding that you've 



17       acquired to be able to seek to do 



18       business in the state of Alabama?



19   A.  That's right.



20   Q.  Right?



21   A.  That's right.  As -- as we came, we 



22       worked closely with some of the regional 



23       development stuff.  They were working on 
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 1       their auto alley corridor concept to 



 2       provide just-in-time manufacturing with 



 3       small businesses, 60 to 80 people, to 



 4       provide to the auto industry.  I know 



 5       Alabama was real successful in getting 



 6       some of the larger car makers to come 



 7       here.  



 8            Well, there has to be ancillary 



 9       support, you know, like brake assembly 



10       manufacturers and those kind of 



11       providers.  The auto alley concept 



12       brought us down, so we kind of mirrored 



13       that in our strategy under the grant to 



14       provide the middle mile connectivity to 



15       support those kind of activities in that 



16       region.  Alabama became clear that they 



17       were lacking the connectivity, and it -- 



18       the proximity of Northwest Georgia and 



19       Northeast Alabama just made it -- made 



20       the two projects mirror together nicely.  



21            And so while I guess the folks in 



22       Alabama don't want to be associated with 



23       Georgia and the folks in Georgia don't 
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 1       want to be associated with Alabama, those 



 2       two regions are very similar in their -- 



 3       in their telecommunication and cultures.  



 4       So it was just a natural extension of 



 5       where our network was going to include 



 6       that underserved area.  



 7            Because we had the connectivity that 



 8       went Atlanta to Chattanooga and because 



 9       we followed the railroad track in that 



10       region, it came very close to the edge of 



11       the state, the state lines.



12   Q.  With your application by Appalachian 



13       Valley Fiber Network, you intend to seek 



14       the authority to provide the 



15       infrastructure for the fiberoptic cable 



16       and the other construction services; is 



17       that correct?



18   A.  That's correct.



19   Q.  You really don't intend by Appalachian 



20       Valley to provide end user services; is 



21       that right?



22   A.  Right.  The stipulations under the 



23       grant -- and you guys can probably 
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 1       appreciate more than most the 



 2       complications and the rules associated 



 3       with a federal grant and the -- the 



 4       guidelines and stringent boundaries that 



 5       they place us in.  The grant project had 



 6       to be a middle mile only type fiber 



 7       project serving the infrastructure of 



 8       underserved communities and large anchor 



 9       institutions.  



10            And so it was a nice marriage to 



11       allow Parker FiberNet to come in to be 



12       the interface to the customer and 



13       Appalachian Valley, under the grant, to 



14       provide the middle mile fiber 



15       connectivity in those regions.



16   Q.  Okay.  And that was what I was going to 



17       ask.  Parker FiberNet will provide the 



18       telecommunications services to the end 



19       users -- 



20   A.  Right.



21   Q.  -- similar to the work that you're doing 



22       in Georgia now?



23   A.  That's right.  That's right.  And it was 
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 1       an effort not to use grant or stimulus 



 2       funds to mirror or duplicate 



 3       iinfrastructure that existed in Parker 



 4       FiberNet, that all those funds could then 



 5       be funneled directly to extending the 



 6       network into the underserved areas.



 7   Q.  How many customers do you anticipate 



 8       having in Alabama?



 9   A.  Probably more than none and less than a 



10       hundred.



11   Q.  All right.  Well, with that background, 



12       let me ask you a few questions about 



13       Parker FiberNet.  Again, the primary 



14       business address for that?



15   A.  Is 1005 South Commerce Street.



16   Q.  Is that true for Appalachian Valley as 



17       well?



18   A.  Yes, sir.



19   Q.  And what's the telephone number for the 



20       company?



21   A.  It's 800-8-PARKER or 1-800-872-7537.  



22   Q.  Is that number true for Appalachian 



23       Valley as well?
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 1   A.  Yes, sir.



 2   Q.  I'll ask you have you read and are you 



 3       familiar with both of the applications in 



 4       this proceeding? 



 5   A.  Yes, sir, I am.



 6   Q.  Are they true and correct?



 7   A.  Yes, sir.



 8   Q.  Are you familiar with both of the 



 9       proposed tariffs in this proceeding?



10   A.  Yes, sir.



11   Q.  Are they true and correct?



12   A.  Yes, sir.



13   Q.  Your company is presently registered to 



14       do business in the state of Alabama, 



15       correct?



16   A.  No.  In the state of Georgia.



17   Q.  Well, I mean, you don't have the 



18       telecommunications authority from the 



19       Public Service Commission yet, but you 



20       have registered with the Secretary of 



21       State's Office.  



22   A.  Right.  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir.  I 



23       apologize.
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 1   Q.  Will the company operate -- either 



 2       company operate under any fictitious 



 3       names in Alabama?



 4   A.  No, sir.



 5   Q.  And Parker FiberNet is authorized by the 



 6       Public Utilities Commission of the State 



 7       of Georgia to do business there, but 



 8       you're not authorized with 



 9       telecommunications authority anywhere 



10       else.  Is that correct?



11   A.  That is correct.



12   Q.  And Appalachian Valley Fiber Net, does it 



13       not have any authority from Georgia for 



14       telecommunication services?



15   A.  We're in the process.



16   Q.  Okay.  You're seeking that application 



17       now?



18   A.  I don't exactly know the status, but I -- 



19       we're in the process.



20   Q.  Okay.  Has Parker FiberNet ever applied 



21       for telecommunications authority in any 



22       other jurisdiction?



23   A.  No, sir.
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 1   Q.  Has the company ever been cited for any 



 2       formal complaints by the Public Service 



 3       Commission of Georgia?



 4   A.  No, sir.



 5   Q.  Has the company or any of the principals 



 6       or officers of the company ever been 



 7       indicted for a crime or -- or other 



 8       felony?



 9   A.  No, sir.



10   Q.  Are you presently, either company, under 



11       investigation for any regulatory 



12       breaches?



13   A.  No, sir.



14   Q.  Does either company plan to operate any 



15       physical facilities in the state of 



16       Alabama other than the construction of 



17       the fiberoptic cable?



18   A.  No, sir.



19   Q.  Does the company plan to have any 



20       employees in the state of Alabama?



21   A.  Other than during the construction, no, 



22       sir.



23   Q.  Okay.  Who will Parker FiberNet use for 
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 1       its underlying carrier?



 2   A.  For switched voice?



 3   Q.  Yeah.



 4   A.  We have interconnection agreements with 



 5       AT&T.  It's now EarthLink.  It used to be 



 6       Deltacom.  A company called Momentum out 



 7       of Birmingham.  And I believe that would 



 8       be all for switched voice.



 9   Q.  That's who you presently use?



10   A.  Yes, sir.



11   Q.  Do you know which of those you'll be 



12       using in Alabama?



13   A.  It would probably be a mixture of the 



14       three.



15   Q.  But you don't have any agreements in 



16       place with that yet?



17   A.  No.  The AT&T agreement, for example, 



18       when we secured it, was for seven 



19       states.  So we went ahead -- even though 



20       we didn't have authority, we made 



21       application and have AT&T agreements for 



22       all of their seven operating states.  



23       Momentum, there's a voice over IP.  
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 1       Perhaps you guys are more learned than I, 



 2       but under -- we felt like that under our 



 3       current agreement, that voice over IP, 



 4       being voice-packaged switch, was not 



 5       regulated; that we didn't need an 



 6       individual application for each state.



 7   Q.  And with respect to both companies -- I 



 8       guess, really, we're talking about Parker 



 9       FiberNet.  With respect to sending 



10       customer bills for telephone services, do 



11       you plan to send bills on a monthly 



12       basis?



13   A.  Yes, sir.



14   Q.  And will those bills be paper bills?



15   A.  Yes, sir.



16   Q.  Will the telephone number of the company 



17       be on the bill?



18   A.  Yes, sir.



19   Q.  And that telephone number will be what?



20   A.  1-800-8-PARKER or 800-872-7537.



21   Q.  If a customer has a problem or needs to 



22       contact the company to -- about a 



23       grievance or any other issue, is that the 
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 1       telephone number that they may call?



 2   A.  Yes, sir.



 3   Q.  Okay.  And what happens when they call 



 4       during your normal business hours?



 5   A.  They will get the secretary.  We don't 



 6       believe in them machines where you have 



 7       to push one or two to get somebody.  A 



 8       person answers the phone, and then 



 9       they'll be directed to -- we have an 



10       in-house engineer that sits in 



11       Summerville, and he fields all the calls 



12       initially.



13   Q.  Okay.  What are your normal business 



14       hours?



15   A.  Eight to five Monday through Friday.



16   Q.  And if a customer were to call after 



17       business hours, what's your protocol for 



18       handling those calls?



19   A.  The call would be handled by the network 



20       operations center, and they would direct 



21       the call to the various engineer person 



22       within the hour.  Remembering that our 



23       customers are large business customers, 
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 1       the next business day for a response is 



 2       inadequate.  So we return all of our 



 3       calls.  Typically, they're just switched 



 4       directly to that end user's cell phone 



 5       because it would be on outage or some 



 6       complaint.  And we require either 



 7       engineering to do a routing change or 



 8       look into the -- the -- you know, we 



 9       would look at our equipment to see how it 



10       interfaces, if we're up and up against 



11       the customer.  If we had to, we would 



12       begin the troubleshooting at that time.  



13            That usually happens within 15 



14       minutes, but our procedure is within the 



15       hour.



16   Q.  Okay.  Do your companies plan to do any 



17       marketing in the state of Alabama?



18   A.  No.



19   Q.  Okay.  When you do marketing in Georgia, 



20       for example, do you use a third party or 



21       do you do it yourself?



22   A.  We do it ourself.  We don't do any 



23       third-party marketing.
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 1   Q.  You don't.  So you don't have any intent 



 2       to use a third party in Alabama for 



 3       marketing either, do you?



 4   A.  No, sir.



 5   Q.  Okay.  And with respect to your bill that 



 6       is sent to the customer that has the 



 7       telephone number that you mentioned, it 



 8       has the company's name on the bill as 



 9       well, right?



10   A.  Yes, sir.



11   Q.  Does Parker FiberNet have a website?



12   A.  Yes, sir.



13   Q.  Okay.  Does Appalachian Valley have a 



14       website?



15   A.  Yes, sir.



16   Q.  Is it the same or different?



17   A.  They link each other, but they're 



18       different.



19   Q.  Okay.  Is there a telephone number of 



20       your company on those websites?



21   A.  Yes, sir.



22   Q.  And what number would that be, the same?



23   A.  1-800-8-PARKER.
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 1   Q.  Where will the companies books and 



 2       records be maintained?



 3   A.  In Summerville, Georgia.



 4   Q.  Will you maintain accurate, up-to-date 



 5       tariffs on file with the Commission?



 6   A.  Yes, sir.



 7   Q.  Okay.  Are you familiar with the rules 



 8       and regulations of the Alabama Public 



 9       Service Commission?



10   A.  Yes, sir.



11   Q.  Will you abide by them?



12   A.  Yes, sir.



13   Q.  Are you familiar with the laws, rules, 



14       and regulations of the Federal 



15       Communications Commission?



16   A.  Yes, sir.



17   Q.  Will you abide by them?



18   A.  Yes, sir.



19   Q.  Are you familiar with federal and state 



20       slamming and cramming laws?



21   A.  Yes, sir.



22   Q.  Will you abide by them?



23   A.  Absolutely.
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 1   Q.  Have you ever had any formal complaints 



 2       about slamming or cramming or any 



 3       telecommunications breach?



 4   A.  No, sir.



 5   Q.  In the event you were accused of any 



 6       slamming or cramming violations, would 



 7       the company immediately stop those 



 8       actions and engage in the appropriate 



 9       discipline of the relevant employees?



10   A.  Yes, sir.



11   Q.  Do you understand that your companies 



12       must file and have approved by the 



13       Commission an interconnection agreement 



14       with respect to providing services in 



15       Alabama?



16   A.  Yes, sir.



17   Q.  And will you do that?



18   A.  Absolutely.



19   Q.  Are your companies aware that you must 



20       file annually a supervision and 



21       inspection report and pay the appropriate 



22       fees associated with that?



23   A.  Yes, sir.
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 1   Q.  Will your companies do that?



 2   A.  Absolutely.



 3   Q.  Are you aware that the company -- both 



 4       companies must file annually a financial 



 5       report with the Public Service 



 6       Commission?



 7   A.  Yes, sir.



 8   Q.  And will your companies comply with that 



 9       requirement?



10   A.  Yes, sir.



11              MR. McLEMORE:  That's all.



12              ALJ MORRIS:  Let's start with 



13          Mr. Cook.



14                CROSS-EXAMINATION



15   BY MR. COOK:



16   Q.  Mr. Parker, my compliments to your 



17       attorney.



18   A.  Thank you.



19   Q.  He's asked about all my questions.  Does 



20       your company plan to use a d/b/a?  I 



21       noticed that you got Parker filed as an 



22       LLC, hereafter PFN.  



23   A.  The PFN is just for convenience of the 



�                                                                   30



 1       Commission.  Parker FiberNet.  So we 



 2       don't -- we don't have a d/b/a that would 



 3       not be intuitively apparent.  We felt 



 4       like PFN is Parker FiberNet, just an 



 5       acronym; so that's -- but there's no 



 6       d/b/a like John's Telephone Company or 



 7       anything like that.  



 8            That was just for the convenience of 



 9       or the documents.  I apologize if we 



10       shouldn't have done it that way.



11   Q.  No.  That's okay.  It was just kind of 



12       confusing.  



13   A.  Yes, sir.



14   Q.  The financial information that you filed, 



15       is that the latest and current?



16   A.  Yes, sir.



17   Q.  Who will be the contact person for 



18       Alabama tariff-specific questions?



19   A.  Kristy Parker.



20   Q.  And what is her title?



21   A.  She's the office manager.



22   Q.  She any kin to you?



23   A.  She might be.  She's my wife.  We're a 
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 1       small company, as I stated.  She went to 



 2       Georgia, too, which creates some 



 3       conflict.



 4   Q.  Oh, that gets kind of interesting at the 



 5       end of the year, don't it?



 6   A.  For the last nine years, it's been real 



 7       interesting except for one year.



 8   Q.  Has your company ever been filed or 



 9       presently in any bankruptcy proceedings?



10   A.  No, sir.



11   Q.  There will not be a marketing or sales 



12       staff located in Alabama?



13   A.  No, sir.



14   Q.  Your underlying carrier, you said, is 



15       going to be AT&T, EarthLink, which used 



16       to be Deltacom, Momentum, which is the 



17       VOiP?



18   A.  That's correct.



19   Q.  Okay.



20   A.  And -- and I don't know.  I apologize for 



21       my ignorance.  I don't know if EarthLink 



22       is going to be the survivor or if 



23       Deltacom is going to be the survivor, but 
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 1       I know they've merged.  And I think -- I 



 2       noticed the other day that the EarthLink 



 3       logo was now on the bill.



 4              MS. CONWAY:  I think it's 



 5          EarthLink.



 6              THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.  I 



 7          apologize.



 8   A.  And then our -- we aggregate our Internet 



 9       product ourselves.  So the underlying 



10       carrier I guess would be us because we 



11       BGP pier with our tier one.



12              COURT REPORTER:  BGP what? 



13              THE WITNESS:  BGP, border gateway 



14          protocol, so it's BGP pier.  I'm sorry.  



15          I sort of rattle off.



16   A.  We take -- we take multiple Internet 



17       providers, like AT&T or the larger 



18       companies, UNET, cable and wireless; and 



19       we aggregate that product ourselves.  We 



20       have a colocation at 56 Marietta, a 



21       telecom hotel for the Southeast.  So we 



22       have a presence there.  So we don't have 



23       an underlying carrier for our Internet.  
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 1       We do it ourselves.



 2   Q.  Okay.  The locations you plan to serve in 



 3       Alabama is basically going to be 



 4       Northeast?



 5   A.  That's correct.



 6   Q.  Okay.



 7   A.  Basically from Breman in Georgia to 



 8       Anniston.



 9   Q.  Are you aware that the Commission must be 



10       notified if there are any changes in key 



11       contact personnel -- 



12   A.  Yes, sir.



13   Q.  -- company ownership via merger, 



14       transfers or acquisitions?



15   A.  Yes, sir?



16   Q.  And -- and/or mailing or phone address?



17   A.  Yes, sir.



18   Q.  Your company name will appear on the 



19       bill?



20   A.  Yes, sir.



21   Q.  And the bill will be paper?



22   A.  Yes, sir.



23   Q.  Who will provide operator service or 
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 1       directory assistance?



 2   A.  The underlying carrier of the switch -- 



 3       of the switch provider.  So if we -- if 



 4       the circuit is derived from AT&T, AT&T 



 5       provides that service.  If the circuit is 



 6       derived from EarthLink, they will provide 



 7       that service.  If the system is derived 



 8       by Momentum, then I think they sub it 



 9       out.  But it's provided by the underlying 



10       carrier.



11   Q.  Do you agree to provide by all the rules 



12       and regulations of this commission?



13   A.  Absolutely.  



14              MR. COOK:  I turn it over to 



15          Ms. Conway.



16              ALJ MORRIS:  Ms. Conway.



17              MS. CONWAY:  Thank you.



18                CROSS-EXAMINATION



19   BY MS. CONWAY:



20   Q.  Mr. Parker, is your company currently 



21       providing any type of telecommunication 



22       services in Alabama?



23   A.  No, ma'am.
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 1   Q.  You mentioned earlier that there was a 



 2       separate website for Appalachian Valley?



 3   A.  Yes, sir.



 4   Q.  Do you happen to know what that is?  Can 



 5       you provide that post-hearing?



 6   A.  Yes, ma'am.  I think it's AVFN.com, but 



 7       I'll have to check.  That website is 



 8       primarily placed currently for the 



 9       convenience of the grant, for the 



10       selection of vendors and equipment and 



11       contractors.



12   Q.  Okay.  Will Appalachian Valley actually 



13       be leasing fiber to Parker FiberNet?  Is 



14       that the way it will work?



15   A.  Yes.  Yes, ma'am.



16   Q.  Okay.  So in all instances, the end user 



17       would be Parker FiberNet from Appalachian 



18       Valley?



19   A.  Parker FiberNet would be an end user.  



20       While it's not a requirement of the 



21       federal stimulus grant, we intend to 



22       provide an open architecture.  So if a 



23       wireless provider was known to AVFN or 
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 1       Parker, we would be willing to sell to 



 2       any end user company; AVFN would.



 3   Q.  Okay.  So you would be actually reselling 



 4       to another carrier?



 5   A.  On a wholesale basis, yes, ma'am.



 6   Q.  Okay.



 7   A.  It -- there's not an exclusive 



 8       arrangement from AVFN to Parker.  We 



 9       wanted to provide an open architecture 



10       format to allow -- we're not into 



11       wireless space; but if a wireless company 



12       approached us as Parker FiberNet, because 



13       we probably would be known to those guys 



14       because we provide that to the Verizons 



15       and AT&Ts of the world in these rural 



16       markets that we're in, we would provide 



17       that information to AVFN if a request was 



18       made in Alabama.  So Alabama could -- 



19       AVFN could have wholesale customers as 



20       end users as well as Parker FiberNet.



21   Q.  Okay.  So just to clarify, the -- it 



22       would be wholesale resale to other 



23       carriers only?
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 1   A.  That's right.  That's right.



 2   Q.  Okay.  



 3   A.  And -- and I don't -- I don't want to 



 4       limit ourselves.  If AVFN made a business 



 5       case to, say, a school system or a 



 6       hospital, we would determine what was 



 7       best for the customer.  And in that case, 



 8       AVFN might directly take care of the 



 9       customer.  Most likely, it would be 



10       Parker FiberNet; but I want to be very 



11       transparent.



12   Q.  So it's possible it could be -- other end 



13       users could --



14   A.  But it would be -- it would be in 



15       sophisticated industrial or institutional 



16       type venues, right.  



17   Q.  Okay.



18   A.  I think it's highly unlikely, but I just 



19       want to be transparent.



20   Q.  Okay.  And are you familiar with tariff 



21       filing procedures and notification of 



22       promotions?



23   A.  Yes, ma'am.
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 1              MS. CONWAY:  Judge Morris, the 



 2          actual tariff for Appalachian Valley 



 3          was not filed until yesterday.  



 4              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.



 5              MS. CONWAY:  So I have not had time 



 6          to thoroughly review it.



 7              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.



 8              MS. CONWAY:  So I'd like to take a 



 9          few days to be able to thoroughly 



10          review it.  And I have already seen a 



11          couple of issues in it that we'll need 



12          to discuss and maybe make some changes.



13              THE WITNESS:  Sure.



14              MS. CONWAY:  But I will get back 



15          with you, Jimmy, on that -- 



16              MR. McLEMORE:  Okay.



17              MS. CONWAY:  -- as soon as I've got 



18          it completed.



19              MR. McLEMORE:  I apologize for 



20          that.  We thought maybe we would be 



21          excused from filing that, and we 



22          weren't, so I appreciate that, so we 



23          got it to you.
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 1              MS. CONWAY:  That's okay.  That's 



 2          okay.  So post-hearing, I will just 



 3          need the website address also of 



 4          Appalachian Valley.  That's all I have.



 5              MR. McLEMORE:  Okay. 



 6              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.  I've just got a 



 7          couple of things.  I notice in your 



 8          financial -- financial information with 



 9          the PFN application, there is some sort 



10          of a balance sheet for DKSL.  Can you 



11          tell me what that is?  



12              THE WITNESS:  That's a holding 



13          company for tax that owns all the 



14          companies that I have.



15              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.



16              THE WITNESS:  It stands for David, 



17          Kristy, Seth and Luke.  Those are my 



18          children's names.  So I'm not very 



19          creative.  Parker Systems, Parker 



20          FiberNet.



21              ALJ MORRIS:  You like acronyms.  



22          Okay.



23              THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  My tax 
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 1          accountant suggested that, and so it's 



 2          a holding company.



 3              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.  And for 



 4          Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, has 



 5          that even been capitalized yet?  



 6              THE WITNESS:  Well, it's funded by 



 7          the BTOP stimulus grant.



 8              ALJ MORRIS:  And that's the sole 



 9          source of capital for that project?  



10              THE WITNESS:  And it's more than 



11          sufficient to accomplish.  We received 



12          a $28 million grant.



13              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.  And, you know, 



14          there's no plan to put any of your own 



15          personal capital into that?  



16              THE WITNESS:  We matched the grant 



17          with $5 million.



18              ALJ MORRIS:  You matched the grant.



19              THE WITNESS:  Of in-kind.



20              ALJ MORRIS:  All right.  And I will 



21          need actually -- for both Parker 



22          FiberNet and Appalachian Valley Fiber 



23          Network, I will need the articles of 
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 1          organization.  What I've got is the 



 2          operating agreements were filed, but 



 3          I'm going to need the articles of 



 4          organization post-hearing.



 5              MR. McLEMORE:  Yes, sir.



 6              ALJ MORRIS:  And as Ms. Conway has 



 7          already stated, she needs the website 



 8          for Appalachian Valley and she's going 



 9          to need some time to review the 



10          tariff.  And we'll get those issues 



11          resolved before we take this to the 



12          Commission for final approval.  



13                  Mr. McLemore, do you have 



14          anything else you'd like to add? 



15              MR. McLEMORE:  No, sir.



16              ALJ MORRIS:  Okay.  With that, we 



17          will take this under advisement.  And 



18          this hearing is concluded.



19                   (Proceedings concluded at 



20                    11:16 a.m.)



21          * * * END OF PROCEEDINGS * * *



22                         



23                         
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9 9 This application was filed on
10 10 May 16th, 2011. An origina notice was
11 FoR kK ok k ok ok ok ok ok 11 served on May 19th, 2011, setting a
12 TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS beforethe |12 hearing date of June 14th, 2011.
13 Honorable Scott Morris, Administrative Law 13 Subsequent notice was served on May
14 Judge, Carl L. Evans Chief Administrative Law 14 20th, 2011, setting a hearing date for
15 Judge Hearing Complex, RSA Union Building, 100 15 today. And there has been no
16 North Union Street, Room 900, Montgomery, 16 intervention in this docket.
17  Alabama, on Tuesday, June 21, 2011, commencing 17 We are aso here for Docket
18 at approximately 10:43 am.; and reported by 18 31631, which is the application of
19 Dee Coker, Registered Professional Reporter 19 Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, LLC.
20 and Commissioner for the State of Alabama at 20 This application was likewise filed --
21 Large. 21 I'm sorry. Theapplicant is
22 *ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 22 Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, LLC.
23 23 They're seeking approval of a
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1 APPEARANCES 1 certificate of public convenience and
2 FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION: 2 necessity to provide telecommunication
3 Mr. William C. (Bjll) Cook 3 servicesin the state of Alabama. The
MY Utﬁrl?y SBlv - .
4 'I\D/Iu ﬂlgnuu ht An\gf Yl 4 application of Parker FiberNet reads
5 ecommunications D|V|S|on 5 the same. And there has been
RSA Union, Suite 923 B . . . Lo
6 100 North Union Street 6 intervention -- or no intervention in
Montgomery, Alabama 36104 ,
7 7 either of these matters.
FOR PARKER FIBERNET, LLC: . .
8 8 The application for Appalachian
r. James H. McL emore . . .
9 gft\cl?r%LL & HOWARD 9 Valley Fiber Network wasidentified on
10 %/ﬁ Per% Street 10 May 16th, 2011. And notice of today's
Montgomery labama 36104 .
11 11 hearing was served on May 20th of 2011.
12 Fok Kk k ok ok ok ok kK 12 With this, we will begin by
13 EXAMINATION INDEX 13 taking appearances, first on behalf of
14 DAVID MATTHEW PARKER 14 both applicants, Parker FiberNet, LLC,
DIRECT BY MR. McCLEMORE __ 7 ) )
15 CROSSBY MR. COOK 29 15 and Appalachian Valley Fiber Network,
CROSSBY MS. CONWAY
16 16 LLC.
17 *okokokok ok ok ok ok ok 17 MR. MCLEMORE: Good morning, Y our
18 18 Honor. | am James H. McL emore, the
19 19 attorney for both Appalachian Valley
20 20 Fiber Network and Parker FiberNet. |
21 21 practice here in Montgomery with Capell
22 22 and Howard at 150 South Perry Street.
23 23 Our telephone number is area code 334,
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Page 5 Page 7
1 241-8000. And with me today, a 1 DIRECT EXAMINATION
2 representative for both companies, is 2 BY MR. MCLEMORE:
3 its principal, Mr. David Parker. And 3 Q. Stateyour name for the record, please.
4 I'll'have him introduce himself for the 4 A. David Matthew Parker.
5 record. 5 Q. And, Mr. Parker, you're here on behalf of
6 MR. PARKER: My nameis David 6 Appalachian Valley Fiber Network and also
7 Parker. Our business address is 1005 7 on behalf Parker FiberNet; isthat
8 South Commerce Street in Summerville, 8 correct?
9 Georgia, like summertime, Summerville 9 A. Thatiscorrect.
10 Georgia, 30747. And I'm the manager of 10 Q. What isyour position with respect to the
11 both companies. 11 two companies?
12 ALJMORRIS: And for the staff? 12 A. I'm the manager of both.
13 MR. COOK: Bill Cook, 13 Q. Okay. Whereisyour business located?
14 Telecommunications Division, Commission 14 A. We'relocated in Summerville, Georgia, at
15 staff. 15 1005 South Commerce Street. And the zip
16 MS. CONWAY: Janet Conway. 16 is30747.
17 ALJMORRIS: Thank you. 17 Q. Okay. A little different than what |
18 And isthere anyone else that 18 normally do, I'd like to kind of get into
19 needs to enter an appearance? 19 the back story a bit about how these two
20 Let the record reflect that no 20 applications came to be filed and what
21 one else has come forward. 21 you're proceeding to do. Sofirst I'll
22 Just as a preliminary matter, | 22 ask you about your existing company,
23 want to note for the record that we are 23 Parker FiberNet. Tell me what that
Page 6 Page 8
1 taking both of these applications 1 company does and how long it's beenin
2 together because of the relationship of 2 business.
3 the companies under the same owner and 3 A. Thank you. Parker FiberNet was began by
4 the consideration of the parties and 4 myself in approximately 1998. We were a
5 the staff that this would best be 5 small company that was doing horizontal
6 served by hearing these two together. 6 cabling and we would build private
7 And with that, we will proceed. 7 networks for existing businesses.
8 Are there any other preliminary matters 8 At that time, we were independently
9 we need to address before we get 9 securing public and private right-of-way
10 started? 10 and access to various infrastructure to
11 MR. MCLEMORE: No, sir. 11 connect facilities together. For
12 ALIJMORRIS: Okay. With that, 12 example, alarge manufacturing company
13 Mr. Parker, if you will stand and raise 13 might have an office just down the street
14 your right hand, I'll swear you in and 14 from their manufacturing facility; and we
15 welll get started. 15 would build network between those two
16 DAVID MATTHEW PARKER 16 facilities.
17 The witness, having first been sworn 17 Being alittle bit of a self-
18  to spesk the truth, the whole truth and 18 proclaimed geek, | was on the Internet a
19 nothing but the truth, testified as follows. 19 lot reading about the Telecom Act of '96
20 ALJMORRIS: Okay. Be seated. 20 and saw that as an opportunity to gain
21 Mr. McLemore. 21 access to the public rights-of-ways,
22 MR. MCLEMORE: Yes, sir. 22 recognizing that at that time that |
23 23 would have to secure primarily pole

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397
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1 attachments from Georgia Power, Southern 1 brought usto the present. We -- we
2 Company, and some other -- various 2 serve commercial customers, no
3 utility owners. It became clear that we 3 residential. A typical set of customers
4 needed to gain Public Service authority. 4 say in Rome, Georgia, to name one
5 That's how you made yourself available to 5 location, would be like Shorter College,
6  therights-of-ways. 6 Berry College, Floyd Hospital, Redmond
7 So | did research and found out that 7 Hospital, Harbin Clinic. Sowe'rea
8 the largest pole owner in the state of 8 large commercial provider. We provide
9 Georgiawas Georgia Power, Southern 9 Internet, switched voice through other
10 Company. Their attorneys was Troutman 10 providers, and ethernet type connectivity
11 and Sanders based out of Atlanta. | felt 11 services between those larger providers.
12 like that | probably couldn't fight those 12 At that time, the stimulus program --
13 big guys, so | got the same attorney firm 13 Q. Wait aminute. Beforeyou get to that,
14 that they did, and | went and seeked 14 let me ask you this question.
15 approval. 15 A. Sure.
16 Q. Sought? 16 Q. How long has Parker FiberNet beenin
17 A. Sought, yeah. Well, seeked in past 17 business?
18 tense, sought. 18 A. Since 1999.
19 Q. He'san engineer and I'm the lawyer. 19 Q. And you're the manager of the company?
20 A. That'sright. | made 800 on the math 20 A. I'mthe manager.
21 part of the SAT. | made 440 on the 21 Q. Areyou the owner?
22 verbal. That'swhy it's seeked. 22 A. I'mthe owner.
23 Q. GeorgiaTech, right? 23 Q. How many employees do you have?
Page 10 Page 12
1 A. GeorgiaTech. | attended Georgia Tech as 1 A. We have approximately 35 employees.
2 an electrical engineer. So, anyway, we 2 Q. Okay. Andyou'real located in
3 sought approval for that. And it became 3 Summerville, Georgia?
4 apparent we needed an other common 4 A. Summerville. And that kind of leadsinto
5 carrier certificate, a CLEC certificate, 5 another point | should have made. We do
6  somevarious FCC certificates, and those 6 everything in-house. We have our own
7 types of things. 7 engineering firm. We have our own
8 So we were successful in gaining 8 construction. We do and seek our own
9  those; and then we began building fiber 9 permits with the DOT, with Georgia Power,
10 networks in secondary markets, secondary 10 BellSouth, AT&T. We have interconnection
11 tier markets like Rome, Georgia; Athens, 11 agreements.
12 Georgia. Wethen -- we purchased and 12 We have our own directional boring
13 bought IRUs for fiber from Atlantato 13 machines. We have our own construction
14 Chattanooga. 14 equipment. So we provide -- we have
15 COURT REPORTER: Purchased and 15 bucket trucks, splicing vans. So we
16 built our -- what kind of use? 16 provision, design, install. And we're
17 THE WITNESS: IRUs, indefeasible 17 provision CLEC, which means that we have
18 rights of use, IRU. 18 our own infrastructure in place.
19 Q. Slow down alittle hit. 19 In the beginning, you know, we
20 A. | know. | apologize. | get wound up. 20 started out kind of using a UNE platform
21 | apologize to the court reporter. 21 that was provided to us from Bell; but as
22 So we -- we then began -- our company 22 they have sort of taken those options
23 expanded and grew, and so that kind of 23 away, our business model has shifted that
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1 we only provide directly connected fiber 1 their auto alley corridor concept to
2 customers to our own network. 2 provide just-in-time manufacturing with
3 Q. You -- presently, you only have 3 small businesses, 60 to 80 people, to
4 telecommunications authority in Georgia; 4 provide to the auto industry. | know
5 isthat correct? 5 Alabamawas real successful in getting
6 A. That'scorrect. 6 some of the larger car makers to come
7 Q. Okay. Let meask you this. What -- what 7 here.
8 isyour interest with respect to these 8 WEéll, there has to be ancillary
9  two applications for these two applicants 9  support, you know, like brake assembly
10 to do businessin Alabama? 10 manufacturers and those kind of
11 A. Wéll, we-- as| started to say -- 11 providers. The auto alley concept
12 Q. When you say we, you mean Parker? 12 brought us down, so we kind of mirrored
13 A. Parker. Parker FiberNet and other Parker 13 that in our strategy under the grant to
14 companies. We have some other companies 14 provide the middle mile connectivity to
15 that do ancillary things. Parker Systems 15 support those kind of activitiesin that
16 isthe construction arm. Parker FiberNet 16 region. Alabamabecame clear that they
17 isthe CLEC authority in Georgia, for 17 were lacking the connectivity, and it --
18 example. 18 the proximity of Northwest Georgia and
19 And so we sought a BTOP grant under 19 Northeast Alabama just made it -- made
20 the stimulus program, and we were 20 the two projects mirror together nicely.
21 successful in securing one. And that 21 And so while | guessthefolksin
22 grant -- we, in our business or in the 22 Alabama don't want to be associated with
23 plan of the grant, made application to go 23 Georgiaand the folksin Georgia don't
Page 14 Page 16
1 into Alabamato provide the middle mile 1 want to be associated with Alabama, those
2 infrastructure fiber connectivity to an 2 two regions are very similar in their --
3 underserved portion of Alabama, kind 3 in their telecommunication and cultures.
4 of -- | get kind of turned around -- east 4 So it was just a natural extension of
5 of -- 5 where our network was going to include
6 Q. Anniston? 6 that underserved area.
7 A. Anniston. 7 Because we had the connectivity that
8 Q. Right. 8 went Atlanta to Chattanooga and because
9 A. Right. 9  wefollowed the railroad track in that
10 Q. Soupin Northeast Alabamawith a 10 region, it came very close to the edge of
11 traditionally underserved area with 11 the state, the state lines.
12 respect to telephone services? 12 Q. Withyour application by Appalachian
13 A. That'sright. 13 Valley Fiber Network, you intend to seek
14 Q. Therewas astimulus package available 14 the authority to provide the
15 that you applied for, received. And 15 infrastructure for the fiberoptic cable
16 that's -- that's the funding that you've 16 and the other construction services; is
17 acquired to be able to seek to do 17 that correct?
18 businessin the state of Alabama? 18 A. That'scorrect.
19 A. That'sright. 19 Q. Yourealy don't intend by Appalachian
20 Q. Right? 20 Valley to provide end user services; is
21 A. That'sright. As-- aswe came, we 21 that right?
22 worked closely with some of the regional 22 A. Right. The stipulations under the
23 development stuff. They were working on 23 grant -- and you guys can probably
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1 appreciate more than most the 1 A. Yes sir.
2 complications and the rules associated 2 Q. I'll ask you have you read and are you
3 with afederal grant and the -- the 3 familiar with both of the applicationsin
4 guidelines and stringent boundaries that 4 this proceeding?
5 they place usin. The grant project had 5 A. Yes g, | am.
6 to be amiddle mile only type fiber 6 Q. Arethey true and correct?
7 project serving the infrastructure of 7 A. Yes, Sir.
8 underserved communities and large anchor 8 Q. Areyou familiar with both of the
9 institutions. 9 proposed tariffsin this proceeding?
10 And so it was a hice marriage to 10 A. Yes, sir.
11 allow Parker FiberNet to comein to be 11 Q. Arethey true and correct?
12 the interface to the customer and 12 A. Yes, sir.
13 Appaachian Valley, under the grant, to 13 Q. Your company is presently registered to
14 provide the middle mile fiber 14 do business in the state of Alabama,
15 connectivity in those regions. 15 correct?
16 Q. Okay. And that waswhat | was going to 16 A. No. Inthe state of Georgia.
17 ask. Parker FiberNet will provide the 17 Q. Waéll, | mean, you don't have the
18 telecommunications servicesto the end 18 telecommunications authority from the
19 users -- 19 Public Service Commission yet, but you
20 A. Right. 20 have registered with the Secretary of
21 Q. -- similar to the work that you're doing 21 State's Office.
22 in Georgia now? 22 A. Right. Yes, sir. Yes, sir. |
23 A. That'sright. That'sright. Anditwas 23 apologize.
Page 18 Page 20
1 an effort not to use grant or stimulus 1 Q. Will the company operate -- either
2 fundsto mirror or duplicate 2 company operate under any fictitious
3 iinfrastructure that existed in Parker 3 names in Alabama?
4 FiberNet, that all those funds could then 4 A. No, sir.
5 be funneled directly to extending the 5 Q. And Parker FiberNet is authorized by the
6 network into the underserved areas. 6 Public Utilities Commission of the State
7 Q. How many customers do you anticipate 7 of Georgiato do business there, but
8 having in Alabama? 8 you're not authorized with
9 A. Probably more than none and less than a 9 telecommunications authority anywhere
10 hundred. 10 else. Isthat correct?
11 Q. All right. Well, with that background, 11 A. Thatiscorrect.
12 let me ask you afew questions about 12 Q. And Appalachian Valley Fiber Net, does it
13 Parker FiberNet. Again, the primary 13 not have any authority from Georgiafor
14 business address for that? 14 telecommunication services?
15 A. 151005 South Commerce Street. 15 A. WEe'rein the process.
16 Q. Isthat truefor Appaachian Valley as 16 Q. Okay. You're seeking that application
17 wel? 17 now?
18 A. Yes,sir. 18 A. | don't exactly know the status, but | --
19 Q. And what's the tel ephone number for the 19 we'rein the process.
20 company? 20 Q. Okay. Has Parker FiberNet ever applied
21 A. It's800-8-PARKER or 1-800-872-7537. 21 for telecommunications authority in any
22 Q. Isthat number true for Appalachian 22 other jurisdiction?
23 Valley aswell? 23 A. No, sirr.
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1 Q. Hasthe company ever been cited for any 1 Perhaps you guys are more learned than |,
2 formal complaints by the Public Service 2 but under -- we felt like that under our
3 Commission of Georgia? 3 current agreement, that voice over IP,
4 A. No,sir. 4 being voice-packaged switch, was not
5 Q. Hasthe company or any of the principals 5 regulated; that we didn't need an
6 or officers of the company ever been 6 individual application for each state.
7 indicted for acrime or -- or other 7 Q. And with respect to both companies -- |
8 felony? 8 guess, really, we're talking about Parker
9 A. No,sir. 9 FiberNet. With respect to sending
10 Q. Areyou presently, either company, under 10 customer bills for telephone services, do
11 investigation for any regulatory 11 you plan to send bills on a monthly
12 breaches? 12 basis?
13 A. No, sir. 13 A. Yes, sir.
14 Q. Does either company plan to operate any 14 Q. And will those bills be paper bills?
15 physical facilitiesin the state of 15 A. Yes, sir.
16 Alabama other than the construction of 16 Q. Will the telephone number of the company
17 the fiberoptic cable? 17 be on the bill?
18 A. No,sir. 18 A. Yes,sir.
19 Q. Doesthe company plan to have any 19 Q. And that telephone number will be what?
20 employees in the state of Alabama? 20 A. 1-800-8-PARKER or 800-872-7537.
21 A. Other than during the construction, no, 21 Q. If acustomer has aproblem or needsto
22 sir. 22 contact the company to -- about a
23 Q. Okay. Who will Parker FiberNet use for 23 grievance or any other issue, isthat the
Page 22 Page 24
1 its underlying carrier? 1 telephone number that they may call?
2 A. For switched voice? 2 A. Yessir.
3 Q. Yeah 3 Q. Okay. Andwhat happens when they call
4 A. We have interconnection agreements with 4 during your normal business hours?
5 AT&T. It'snow EarthLink. It used to be 5 A. They will get the secretary. We don't
6 Deltacom. A company called Momentum out 6 believe in them machines where you have
7 of Birmingham. And | believe that would 7 to push one or two to get somebody. A
8 be all for switched voice. 8 person answers the phone, and then
9 Q. That'swho you presently use? 9  they'll bedirected to -- we have an
10 A. Yes, sir. 10 in-house engineer that sitsin
11 Q. Do you know which of those you'll be 11 Summerville, and hefields all the calls
12 using in Alabama? 12 initially.
13 A. It would probably be a mixture of the 13 Q. Okay. What are your normal business
14 three. 14 hours?
15 Q. But you don't have any agreementsin 15 A. Eight to five Monday through Friday.
16 place with that yet? 16 Q. Andif acustomer wereto call after
17 A. No. The AT&T agreement, for example, 17 business hours, what's your protocol for
18 when we secured it, was for seven 18 handling those calls?
19 states. So we went ahead -- even though 19 A. Thecall would be handled by the network
20 we didn't have authority, we made 20 operations center, and they would direct
21 application and have AT& T agreements for 21 thecall to the various engineer person
22 all of their seven operating states. 22 within the hour. Remembering that our
23 Momentum, there's avoice over IP. 23 customers are large business customers,
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1 the next business day for aresponseis 1 Q. Wherewill the companies books and
2 inadequate. So we return all of our 2 records be maintained?
3 cals. Typicaly, they're just switched 3 A. In Summerville, Georgia.
4 directly to that end user's cell phone 4 Q. Will you maintain accurate, up-to-date
5 because it would be on outage or some 5 tariffs on file with the Commission?
6 complaint. And we require either 6 A. Yes gir.
7 engineering to do arouting change or 7 Q. Okay. Areyou familiar with therules
8 look into the -- the -- you know, we 8 and regulations of the Alabama Public
9 would look at our equipment to see how it 9 Service Commission?
10 interfaces, if we're up and up against 10 A. Yes, sir.
11 the customer. If we had to, we would 11 Q. Will you abide by them?
12 begin the troubleshooting at that time. 12 A. Yes, sir.
13 That usually happens within 15 13 Q. Areyou familiar with the laws, rules,
14 minutes, but our procedure iswithin the 14 and regulations of the Federal
15 hour. 15 Communications Commission?
16 Q. Okay. Do your companies plan to do any 16 A. Yes, sir.
17 marketing in the state of Alabama? 17 Q. Will you abide by them?
18 A. No. 18 A. Yes, sir.
19 Q. Okay. When you do marketing in Georgia, 19 Q. Areyou familiar with federal and state
20 for example, do you use athird party or 20 slamming and cramming laws?
21 do you do it yourself? 21 A. Yes, dir.
22 A. Wedoit ourself. Wedon't do any 22 Q. Will you abide by them?
23 third-party marketing. 23 A. Absolutely.
Page 26 Page 28
1 Q. Youdon't. Soyoudon't have any intent 1 Q. Haveyou ever had any formal complaints
2 to use athird party in Alabamafor 2 about slamming or cramming or any
3 marketing either, do you? 3 telecommunications breach?
4 A. No, sir. 4 A. No, sir.
5 Q. Okay. And with respect to your bill that 5 Q. Intheevent you were accused of any
6 is sent to the customer that has the 6 damming or cramming violations, would
7 telephone number that you mentioned, it 7 the company immediately stop those
8 has the company's name on the bill as 8 actions and engage in the appropriate
9 well, right? 9 discipline of the relevant employees?
10 A. Yes, sir. 10 A. Yes, sir.
11 Q. Does Parker FiberNet have awebsite? 11 Q. Do you understand that your companies
12 A. Yes, sir. 12 must file and have approved by the
13 Q. Okay. DoesAppalachian Valley have a 13 Commission an interconnection agreement
14 website? 14 with respect to providing servicesin
15 A. Yes, sir. 15 Alabama?
16 Q. Isitthesameor different? 16 A. Yes, Sir.
17 A. They link each other, but they're 17 Q. Andwill you do that?
18 different. 18 A. Absolutely.
19 Q. Okay. Isthere atelephone number of 19 Q. Areyour companies aware that you must
20 your company on those websites? 20 file annually a supervision and
21 A. Yes, dir. 21 inspection report and pay the appropriate
22 Q. And what number would that be, the same? 22 fees associated with that?
23 A. 1-800-8-PARKER. 23 A. Yes, dir.
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1 Q. Will your companies do that? 1 small company, as| stated. She went to
2 A. Absolutely. 2 Georgia, too, which creates some
3 Q. Areyou aware that the company -- both 3 conflict.
4 companies must file annually afinancial 4 Q. Oh, that getskind of interesting at the
5 report with the Public Service 5 end of the year, don't it?
6 Commission? 6 A. Forthelast nineyears, it's been redl
7 A. Yes, Sir. 7 interesting except for one year.
8 Q. And will your companies comply with that 8 Q. Hasyour company ever been filed or
9 requirement? 9 presently in any bankruptcy proceedings?
10 A. Yes, sir. 10 A. No,sir.
11 MR. MCLEMORE: That'sall. 11 Q. Therewill not be a marketing or sales
12 ALIJMORRIS: Let'sstart with 12 oeff located in Alabama?
13 Mr. Cook. 13 A. No, sir.
14 CROSS-EXAMINATION 14 Q. Your underlying carrier, you said, is
15 BY MR. COOK: 15 going to be AT& T, EarthLink, which used
16 Q. Mr. Parker, my compliments to your 16 to be Deltacom, Momentum, which isthe
17 attorney. 17 VOIiP?
18 A. Thank you. 18 A. That'scorrect.
19 Q. He'sasked about all my questions. Does 19 Q. Okay.
20 your company plan to use ad/b/a? | 20 A. And-- and | don't know. | apologize for
21 noticed that you got Parker filed as an 21 my ignorance. | don't know if EarthLink
22 LLC, hereafter PFN. 22 is going to be the survivor or if
23 A. ThePFN isjust for convenience of the 23 Deltacom is going to be the survivor, but
Page 30 Page 32
1 Commission. Parker FiberNet. So we 1 | know they've merged. And | think -- |
2 don't -- we don't have a d/b/a that would 2 noticed the other day that the EarthLink
3 not be intuitively apparent. We felt 3 logo was how on the bill.
4 like PFN is Parker FiberNet, just an 4 MS. CONWAY:: | think it's
5 acronym; so that's -- but there's no 5 EarthLink.
6 d/b/alike John's Telephone Company or 6 THE WITNESS: Yes, maam. |
7 anything like that. 7 apologize.
8 That was just for the convenience of 8 A. And then our -- we aggregate our Internet
9 or the documents. | apologizeif we 9 product ourselves. So the underlying
10 shouldn't have done it that way. 10 carrier | guess would be us because we
11 Q. No. That'sokay. It wasjust kind of 11 BGP pier with our tier one.
12 confusing. 12 COURT REPORTER: BGP what?
13 A. Yes, sir. 13 THE WITNESS: BGP, border gateway
14 Q. Thefinancia information that you filed, 14 protocol, so it's BGP pier. I'm sorry.
15 isthat the latest and current? 15 | sort of rattle off.
16 A. Yes, sir. 16 A. Wetake -- we take multiple Internet
17 Q. Who will be the contact person for 17 providers, like AT&T or the larger
18 Alabama tariff-specific questions? 18 companies, UNET, cable and wireless; and
19 A. Kristy Parker. 19 we aggregate that product ourselves. We
20 Q. Andwhat isher title? 20 have a colocation at 56 Marietta, a
21 A. She'sthe office manager. 21 telecom hotel for the Southeast. So we
22 Q. Sheany kinto you? 22 have a presence there. So we don't have
23 A. Shemight be. Shesmy wife. We'rea 23 an underlying carrier for our Internet.
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1 Wedo it ourselves. 1 Q. You mentioned earlier that there was a
2 Q. Okay. Thelocationsyou planto servein 2 separate website for Appalachian Valley?
3 Alabamais basically going to be 3 A. Yes dir.
4 Northeast? 4 Q. Do you happen to know what that is? Can
5 A. That'scorrect. 5 you provide that post-hearing?
6 Q. Okay. 6 A. Yes, maam. | think it's AVFN.com, but
7 A. Basicaly from Breman in Georgiato 7 I'll have to check. That websiteis
8 Anniston. 8 primarily placed currently for the
9 Q. Areyou aware that the Commission must be 9 convenience of the grant, for the
10 notified if there are any changesin key 10 selection of vendors and equipment and
11 contact personnel -- 11 contractors.
12 A. Yes, sir. 12 Q. Okay. Will Appalachian Valley actualy
13 Q. -- company ownership viamerger, 13 be leasing fiber to Parker FiberNet? Is
14 transfers or acquisitions? 14 that the way it will work?
15 A. Yes, sir? 15 A. Yes. Yes, maam.
16 Q. And -- and/or mailing or phone address? 16 Q. Okay. Soinall instances, the end user
17 A. Yes, dir. 17 would be Parker FiberNet from Appalachian
18 Q. Your company name will appear on the 18 Valley?
19 bill? 19 A. Parker FiberNet would be an end user.
20 A. Yes, gir. 20 While it's not arequirement of the
21 Q. Andthe bill will be paper? 21 federa stimulus grant, weintend to
22 A. Yes, Sir. 22 provide an open architecture. Soif a
23 Q. Who will provide operator service or 23 wireless provider was known to AVFN or
Page 34 Page 36
1 directory assistance? 1 Parker, we would be willing to sell to
2 A. Theunderlying carrier of the switch -- 2 any end user company; AVFN would.
3 of the switch provider. So if we-- if 3 Q. Okay. Soyouwould be actually reselling
4 thecircuit isderived from AT& T, AT&T 4 toanother carrier?
5 providesthat service. If thecircuitis 5 A. Onawholesale basis, yes, maam.
6 derived from EarthLink, they will provide 6 Q. Okay.
7 that service. If the systemis derived 7 A. It --theré'snot an exclusive
8 by Momentum, then | think they sub it 8 arrangement from AVFN to Parker. We
9 out. But it's provided by the underlying 9 wanted to provide an open architecture
10 carrier. 10 format to alow -- we're not into
11 Q. Doyou agreeto provide by all therules 11 wireless space; but if awireless company
12 and regulations of this commission? 12 approached us as Parker FiberNet, because
13 A. Absolutely. 13 we probably would be known to those guys
14 MR. COOK: | turn it over to 14 because we provide that to the Verizons
15 Ms. Conway. 15 and AT& Ts of theworld in these rural
16 ALJMORRIS: Ms. Conway. 16 markets that we're in, we would provide
17 MS. CONWAY: Thank you. 17 that information to AVFN if arequest was
18 CROSS-EXAMINATION 18 made in Alabama. So Alabama could --
19 BY MS. CONWAY: 19 AVFN could have wholesale customers as
20 Q. Mr. Parker, isyour company currently 20 end users as well as Parker FiberNet.
21 providing any type of telecommunication 21 Q. Okay. Sojustto clarify, the -- it
22 servicesin Alabama? 22 would be wholesale resal e to other
23 A. No, maam. 23 carriersonly?
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1 A. That'sright. That'sright. 1 MS. CONWAY:: That'sokay. That's
2 Q. Okay. 2 okay. So post-hearing, | will just
3 A. And-- and | don't -- | don't want to 3 need the website address also of
4 limit ourselves. If AVFN made abusiness 4 Appaachian Valley. That'sal | have.
5 case to, say, a school system or a 5 MR. MCLEMORE: Okay.
6 hospital, we would determine what was 6 ALIJMORRIS: Okay. I'vejust got a
7 best for the customer. And in that case, 7 couple of things. | noticein your
8 AVFN might directly take care of the 8 financial -- financial information with
9 customer. Most likely, it would be 9 the PFN application, there is some sort
10 Parker FiberNet; but | want to be very 10 of abalance sheet for DKSL. Canyou
11 transparent. 11 tell me what that is?
12 Q. Soit'spossibleit could be -- other end 12 THE WITNESS:. That's aholding
13 users could -- 13 company for tax that owns all the
14 A. Butit would be -- it would bein 14 companiesthat | have.
15 sophisticated industrial or institutional 15 ALJMORRIS: Okay.
16 type venues, right. 16 THE WITNESS: It stands for David,
17 Q. Okay. 17 Kristy, Seth and Luke. Those are my
18 A. | think it's highly unlikely, but | just 18 children'snames. So I'm not very
19 want to be transparent. 19 creative. Parker Systems, Parker
20 Q. Okay. And areyou familiar with tariff 20 FiberNet.
21 filing procedures and notification of 21 ALJMORRIS: You like acronyms.
22 promotions? 22 Okay.
23 A. Yes, maam. 23 THE WITNESS: Yeah. My tax
Page 38 Page 40
1 MS. CONWAY:: Judge Morris, the 1 accountant suggested that, and so it's
2 actual tariff for Appalachian Valley 2 a holding company.
3 was not filed until yesterday. 3 ALJMORRIS: Okay. And for
4 ALJMORRIS: Okay. 4 Appalachian Valley Fiber Network, has
5 MS. CONWAY: So | have not had time 5 that even been capitalized yet?
6 to thoroughly review it. 6 THE WITNESS: Wéll, it's funded by
7 ALJMORRIS: Okay. 7 the BTOP stimulus grant.
8 MS. CONWAY: Sol'dliketotakea 8 ALJMORRIS: And that'sthe sole
9 few days to be able to thoroughly 9 source of capital for that project?
10 review it. And | have already seen a 10 THE WITNESS: And it's more than
11 couple of issuesin it that we'll need 11 sufficient to accomplish. We received
12 to discuss and maybe make some changes. 12 a$28 million grant.
13 THE WITNESS: Sure. 13 ALJMORRIS: Okay. And, you know,
14 MS. CONWAY: But | will get back 14 there's no plan to put any of your own
15 with you, Jimmy, on that -- 15 personal capital into that?
16 MR. MCLEMORE: Okay. 16 THE WITNESS: We matched the grant
17 MS. CONWAY': -- assoon as |'ve got 17 with $5 million.
18 it completed. 18 ALJMORRIS: You matched the grant.
19 MR. McLEMORE: | apologize for 19 THE WITNESS: Of in-kind.
20 that. We thought maybe we would be 20 ALIJMORRIS: All right. And | will
21 excused from filing that, and we 21 need actually -- for both Parker
22 weren't, so | appreciate that, so we 22 FiberNet and Appalachian Valley Fiber
23 got it to you. 23 Network, | will need the articles of
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1 organization. What I've got isthe
2 operating agreements were filed, but
3 I'm going to need the articles of
4 organi zation post-hearing.
5 MR. MCLEMORE: Yes, sir.
6 ALJMORRIS: And as Ms. Conway has
7 aready stated, she needs the website
8 for Appalachian Valley and she's going
9 to need some time to review the
10 tariff. Andwell get those issues
11 resolved before we take thisto the
12 Commission for final approval.
13 Mr. McLemore, do you have
14 anything else you'd like to add?
15 MR. MCLEMORE: No, sir.
16 ALJMORRIS: Okay. With that, we
17 will take this under advisement. And
18 this hearing is concluded.
19 (Proceedings concluded at
20 11:16 am.)
21 * * * END OF PROCEEDINGS* * *
22
23
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1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2 STATE OF ALABAMA
3 ELMORE COUNTY
4 I, Dee Coker, Registered Professional
5 Reporter and Commissioner for the State of
6 Alabamaat Large, hereby certify that on
7 Tuesday, June 21, 2011, | reported the
8 TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS in the matter of the
9 foregoing cause, and that pages 3 through 41
10 contain atrue and accurate transcription of
11 said proceedings.
12 | further certify that | am neither
13 kin nor of counsel to the parties to said
14 cause, nor in any manner interested in the
15 resultsthereof.
16
17
18 /s/Dee Coker
19 Commisond for e
State of Alabamaat Large
20 CCR 85, Expires 9/30/2011
21 COMMISSION EXPIRES: 1/20/2013
22
23

FREEDOM COURT REPORTING (205) 397-2397





